
 

Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green 
 
Staines-upon-Thames TW18 1XB 
 
www.spelthorne.gov.uk customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk Telephone 01784 451499 
 

 
 
 
 

 Please reply to:  
 Contact: Gary Lelliott 
 Service: Committee Services 
 Direct Line: 01784 446337 
 E-mail: g.lelliott@spelthorne.gov.uk 
 Date: 08 November 2021 

 
 

Notice of meeting 
 
 

Economic Development Committee 
 
 
Date: 
 

Tuesday, 16 November 2021 

Time: 
 

7.00 pm 

Place: 
 

Council Chamber, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-Thames, TW18 1XB 

 
To the members of the Economic Development Committee 
 
Councillors: 
 
C.F. Barnard (Chairman) 
V.J. Leighton (Vice-Chairman) 
A. Brar 
 

S. Buttar 
J.T.F. Doran 
T. Fidler 
 

M. Gibson 
H. Harvey 
L. E. Nichols 
 

 
Substitute Members: Councillors C. Bateson, S.M. Doran, O. Rybinski and B.B. Spoor 
 
Councillors are reminded that the Gifts and Hospitality Declaration book will be available 
outside the meeting room for you to record any gifts or hospitality offered to you since the last 
Committee meeting. 

http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/
mailto:customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk


 

 

Agenda 
 
 Page nos. 
 
1.   Apologies and Substitutes 

 
 

 To receive any apologies for absence and notification of substitutions. 
 

 

2.   Minutes 
 

5 - 10 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2021 as 
a correct record. 
 

 

3.   Disclosures of interests 
 

 

 To receive any disclosures of interest from councillors in accordance 
with the Council’s Code of Conduct for members. 
 

 

4.   Questions from members of the Public 
 

 

 The Chair, or his nominee, to answer any questions raised by 
members of the public in accordance with Standing Order 40. 
 
At the time of publication of this agenda no questions had been 
received. 
 

 

5.   Ward Issues 
 

 

 To consider any issues raised by ward councillors in accordance with 
Standing Order 34.2 
 
At the time of publication of this agenda no ward issues had been 
received. 
 

 

6.   Update from the Town Centre Manager 
 

11 - 34 

 This report provides an update on the activities of the Town Centre 
Manager. 
 
Recommendation: to note the report. 
 

 

7.   Staines BID Renewal - Verbal Update 
 

 

 To receive a verbal update on the Staines Business Improvement 
District renewal. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

8.   Additional Restrictions Grant Monitoring 
 

35 - 42 

 This report provides an update on the Additional Restrictions Grant 
element of the Economic Development Recovery Plan. 
 
Recommendation: to note the report. 
 

 

9.   Local Economic Assessment 
 

43 - 116 

 To review the Local Economic Assessment, prior to the preparation of 
a new Economic Strategy. 
 
Recommendation: to note the report. 
 

 

10.   Monitoring of Economic Development of Corporate Recovery Plan 
 

117 - 120 

 This report provides an update on the Economic Development aspect 
of the Corporate Recovery Plan. 
 
Recommendation: to note the report. 
 

 

11.   Revenue Monitoring Q2 (July - Sept) 
 

121 - 124 

 This report provides a summary of the forecast outturn position for the 
financial year 2021-22 as at 30 September, for the Economic 
Development Committee. 
 
Recommendation: to note the report. 
 

 

12.   Capital Monitoring Q2 (July - Sept) 
 

 

 There is no capital expenditure report this quarter. 
 

 

13.   Forward Plan 
 

125 - 128 

 To consider the forward plan for committee business. 
 

 

14.   Urgent business 
 

 

 To consider any business deemed as urgent by the chair. 
 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

Minutes of the Economic Development Committee 
21 September 2021 

 
 

Present: 

Councillor C.F. Barnard (Chairman) 
Councillor V.J. Leighton (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillors: 
 

A. Brar 

S. Buttar 

T. Fidler 

M. Gibson 

 

L. E. Nichols 

 

  

375/21   Apologies and Substitutes  
 

Councillors John Doran and Helen Harvey gave apologies for absence. 
 

376/21   Disclosures of interests  
 

There were no disclosures of interest. 
 

377/21   Minutes  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 22 June 2021 were agreed. 
 

378/21   Questions from members of the Public  
 

None. 
 

379/21   Ward Issues  
 

None. 
 

380/21   Revenue Monitoring Report (Qtr. 1 April - June)  
 

The report was presented to the committee. 
 
There were variances to various budgets, particularly with regard to rental 
income, principally because of Covid-19.  The council was receiving 
government support, although it was not certain when this arrangement would 
end. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
Economic Development Committee, 21 September 2021 - continued 

 

 
 

Written clarification on the budget line for Staines Town Centre Management 
would be provided after the meeting. 
 
Councillors were invited to provide feedback on the presentation of future 
reports outside the meeting. 
 
The report was NOTED. 
 

381/21   Capital Monitoring Report (Qtr. 1 April - June)  
 

The report was presented to the committee. 
 
An error had been identified in the appendix, however it did not impact on the 
reported variance.  Expenditure on the Elmsleigh Centre had been approved 
in a previous budget, prior to the implementation of the committee system.  
Written confirmation of the date of this approval would be provided after the 
meeting. 
 
Councillors were invited to provide feedback on the presentation of future 
reports outside the meeting. 
 
The report was NOTED. 
 

382/21   SLR Southern Light Railway  
 

The committee received a presentation on the proposed southern light 
railway. 
 
It was planned for the scheme to be funded by private investment.  This 
investment was contingent on the project being able to source initial 
investment to fund the preparation of a full business case.  It was hoped that a 
high-level business case, which would include financial projections. would be 
available by the end of the year. 
 
The bid was being managed by a consortium whose membership included 
Spelthorne Borough Council (SBC) and various specialist organisations.  
Representation from other organisations would be important to the project.  
SBC was intending to act as a facilitator to the project. 
 
There was discussion about the government’s specification around their 
requirements for southern access to Heathrow, which was still currently 
awaited.  The consortium was keen to sell the benefits of a light railway, 
instead of a heavy railway which would have a greater environmental impact 
and not be able to operate services at the same frequency.  The light railway 
option would also more easily enable the creation of intermediate stops that 
would benefit the residents of Stanwell in particular.  Staines would also 
benefit, as it would then have a direct connection to London Heathrow Airport. 
 

Page 6



 
Economic Development Committee, 21 September 2021 - continued 

 

 
 

Work had been carried out to compare the proposed light railway to other 
similar successful schemes around the world.  It was also hoped that the 
London Transport travel zones could be extended to Staines (so the borough 
would sit within zone 6), which would cut the cost of travel to the area and 
promote economic development and modal shift among commuters and those 
travelling to the airport. 
 
Councillor engagement, particularly in the newly adopted committee system, 
needed careful consideration.  There was the possibility of recommissioning a 
previous Heathrow expansion working group to fulfil this need. 
 
The presentation was NOTED. 
 

383/21   Spelthorne Youth Hub  
 

The report was presented to the committee. 
 
A2Dominion had been awarded the contract to operate the hub due to their 
expertise in this area and their work with disadvantaged and hard to reach 
families such as those with SEN, with disabilities and young carers.  
A2Dominion was contracted to help at least 189 families by the end of the 
project. 
 
It was planned to offer services in local outreach locations, with a main 
recruitment office in Staines town centre (location yet to be determined).  The 
new service was also going to be promoted via social media and an app that 
was being developed. 
 

384/21   Additional Restrictions Grant Monitoring  
 

The report was presented to the committee. 
 
The economic development and business rates teams had worked hard to 
process grant applications, of which around 400 had been received.  The two 
teams had also been carrying out spot checks on the businesses concerned, 
to ensure that they were making legitimate use of the grant funding.  
Government funding was available until March 2022, after which there was 
uncertainty over whether it would continue. 
 
It was suggested that the previous task group be reconvened.  The notes of 
previous task group meetings would be circulated as soon as possible. 
 
The report was NOTED. 
 

385/21   Business Rates Retention  
 

The report was presented to the committee. 
 

Page 7



 
Economic Development Committee, 21 September 2021 - continued 

 

 
 

SBC had retained over £1m in business rates, which was ringfenced for 
economic development activities.  There was no time limit on when the money 
had to be spent, which meant that projects could be closely assessed before 
any funding was committed.  It was hoped that some of the money could be 
used to help businesses during their recovery from Covid-19. 
 
The report was NOTED. 
 

386/21   Local Economic Assessment  
 

The report was presented to the committee. 
 
SBC was sometimes not comparable with other Surrey districts  It had 
however generally performed better than had been expected. 
 
Various statistics were reviewed.  The number of people qualified to at least 
NVQ4 had increased, but this trend was identified across other boroughs.  
Pay in the borough was often high, but many posts were occupied by 
residents from other areas.  The local job market was also heavily dependent 
on London Heathrow Airport, which had seen a significant numbers of 
redundancies due to Covid-19.  The ending of the government’s furlough 
scheme was expected to be a key point in the borough’s economic recovery. 
 
[Councillor Nichols left the meeting.] 
 
A local economic strategy was due to be developed in the near future.  It 
would focus on areas where the council could have the greatest possible 
impact. 
 
The report was NOTED. 
 

387/21   Monitoring of Economic Development element of Corporate 
Recovery Plan  
 

The report was presented to the committee. 
 
The committee reviewed the areas of the corporate plan that were within its 
remit in particular: 
 

 ER2 – provision/signposting of advice and support – the council had 
performed strongly in this area. 

 ER8 – pop up shop for entrepreneurs – this was planned for when 
restrictions had eased. 

 ER9 – business incubator – this had now opened and businesses had 
started occupying the site.  Planned capacity was 80% after 12 months 
of operation. 

 ER11 – shop local – the council’s procurement standing orders had 
changed to promote greater use of local businesses and suppliers. 

 

Page 8



 
Economic Development Committee, 21 September 2021 - continued 

 

 
 

The report was NOTED. 
 

388/21   Forward Plan  
 

The following was AGREED: 
 

 Add the draft economic assessment to the agenda for the 16 
November 2021 committee. 

 Move the draft economic strategy to the 25 January 2021 committee. 
 

389/21   Urgent business  
 

None. 
 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Version: 2, Last saved: 28/10/2021 15.10 

Economic Development Committee  

 

16 November 2021 

 

1. Key issues 

The post of Town Centre Manager started in October 2020 and over a period of 
around 6 months was peppered with lockdowns which made communications and 
working with businesses very difficult.  As a result, time was spent on other areas 
supporting colleagues with setting up of the incubator and helping with grants for the 
ARGs.  Additionally, work was carried out with regards to the demographics of each 
town as can be seen with the attached papers. 
 
1.1 Town Centre Surgeries 

Regular meeting point in each town centre was launched to raise the profile of the 
post and provide businesses and the community a regular designated time and place 
to meet the town centre manager to discuss issues arising, problems and needs. 
 
As we expected attendance has been sporadic and the numbers of businesses not 
great, but it has proved a useful exercise in raising the council’s profile in the High 
Street and demonstrating our desire to work with businesses.  The surgeries 
currently take place once a week in each town, although this will become once a 
month from November.  
 
In terms of numbers, the surgeries have averaged just under 1 visit per surgery 
across the time we have been running them – but this has often included multiple 
repeat visits by the same person/business or 2 or 3 people as the same visit – 

Title Update from the Town Centre Manager 

Purpose of the report To note 

Report Author Andy Willmott Town Centre Manager 

Ward(s) Affected All Wards 

Exempt No     

Exemption Reason N/A 

Corporate Priority Economic Development 

Recommendations 

 

Committee is asked to: 

 

Note the report 

 

Reason for 
Recommendation 

Update report only 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 

 
 

meaning there have been many occasions where there have been no businesses 
attending.  Surgeries are moving to one per month starting in November as the take-
up has not justified the time. 
 
As well as being a useful exercise, the process has allowed contact with some 
businesses that would not normally happen.  One example was a chance encounter 
with a start-up business in Sunbury, as he saw the fluorescent Town Centre 
Manager jacket, which has resulted in the provision of various signposting advice, 
invitations to events and access to digital training.   
 
Whilst not all the business queries are possible to be answered as a large number 
relate to wider issues such as planning, business rates etc, they provide an 
important information source from our town centre businesses and help formulate 
our future work programme.  The surgeries have also helped develop increased links 
with town centre stakeholders such as Ashford Wide, Rotary, Sunbury Cross 
Shopping Centre etc.     
 
 
1.2 Cost-savings scheme 
 
This pilot project is designed to evaluate whether to launch a cost-savings support 
scheme for local businesses within the borough. The service that is being delivered 
to businesses is a structured support solution that delivers benefit through identifying 
savings for businesses on their core business costs. The cost for this pilot is £5,000 
and the project will run for 3 months until the end of November. The service is 
funded to enable a clear, impartial advisory process and it is a model that has been 
successfully delivered to over 130 BIDs nationally and is being implemented as part 
of our business recovery response to Covid. 
 

The project officially launched on Wednesday 1st September with a soft launch prior 
to this in July and preparatory work prior to this which included the provision and 
distribution of a leaflet and launch letter to businesses across Ashford and 
Sunbury.  A savings database is being created to ensure all data received from 
businesses is tracked and progress with suppliers and reports recorded.  The focus 
over the course of the initial period has been to work with those businesses that 
expressed an interest in taking part in the pilot.  Businesses have received an 
introductory call and follow up email with the offer to meet the consultant.  A wide 
range of businesses have expressed an interest to meet and discuss further, from 
micro and SME businesses through to professional services. 
 
Headline details: 
 

 Leaflet distributed to circa 350 businesses across Ashford and Sunbury 

 Calling campaign underway by place support team to book business visits for 
place savings team 

 27 business visits conducted to date 

 8 Businesses have shared data to date 

 4 Businesses have agreed to share data and are yet to provide  

 Within 6 weeks of launch we have identified over £4000 of savings for 
businesses across merchant services, water, and telecoms 
 

Page 12



 

 
 

When the service was proposed and subsequently launched the objective was to 
support and save businesses money.  The sudden rise in the cost of commercial and 
domestic energy suppliers is seeing a shift in the strategy to becoming the ‘go to’ 
source for trusted, impartial advice and guidance to support businesses in navigating 
the current energy crisis and ensure businesses make informed decisions on the 
best way forward.  The free service is now available to any business in Spelthorne. 
 
1.3 Town centre business groups 
Historically, councils and other public bodies have looked to achieve business 
engagement through liaison with various groups of businesses within any given area.  
They can be larger organisations (Chambers of Commerce, Federation of Small 
Business) or more localised groups, usually made up of a small number of 
committed local people, passionate about their town/area.  However, this process 
always comes up against the same challenge - if you ask the same people, you get 
the same answers. 
 
Whilst still working and liaising with key business groups such as Ashford Wide, 
Lower Sunbury, Shepperton community groups, a slightly different model has been 
adopted whereby we are identifying key areas where we can assist businesses, 
working on a potential solution and then promoting that to all of the businesses to 
gain as much reach as possible.  
 
This has been made possible, and necessary as a consequence of the lockdown, 
the rise of digital communications and, most importantly, the fact that the TCM can 
now regularly maintain a high visibility physical presence by patrolling the High 
Streets and calling in and speaking with retailers and businesses.    
  
This is now bearing fruit with projects such as the cost-savings scheme, Additional 
Restrictions Grant (ARG) applications, future ARG support on capital expenditure etc 
reaching a greater number of businesses including ones where contact has not 
previously taken place.  
 
1.4 Town Meetings / Groups - activities 
 
 
Sunbury Cross 
Liaising with the shopping centre management and businesses on the parade 
opposite to make this a more inviting commercial area. 
     
Businesses have feedback that the area is drab and needs to be brightened up, so 
collaboration is taking place with Neighbourhood Services to try to enhance the look 
of the area with hanging baskets/greenery.  The positioning of any baskets is a major 
issue in achieving this as there is so much signage in the area.  
 
Lower Sunbury 
Now having regular meetings with a small group in Lower Sunbury - currently 
working on the holding a Christmas market in The Avenue in December.  
 
Ashford 
Regularly attend Ashford Wide meetings to both keep updated on projects and to 
understand feedback from their businesses.   
 

Page 13



 

 
 

Shepperton 
No formal business group is present but hold regular meetings with key businesses 
and the active community groups such as Rotary, Residents Association.  A survey 
with businesses will be carried out to establish the level of support for a Shepperton 
Business Group.   
 
Consideration is also being given to setting up a market at the rear of the Village 
Hall.  This prospect has been received well by businesses as it is likely to drive 
additional footfall to the town. 
 
1.5 Sunbury Cross Underpass Project 
 
This Neighbourhood Services project is slowly taking shape and work is taking place 
on securing funding from the Welcome Back Fund (WBF), once this happens the 
relevant Council project documentation will be completed.  
 
In collaboration with Neighbourhood Services, it has been identified that the WBF 
may be able to contribute towards the improved appearance and user safety of the 
Sunbury Cross underpass.  
 
The key elements that they would like to achieve, if they are successful with funding 
are: - 
 

 Deep clean throughout 

 Reduction of trees & shrubbery to increase light into the tunnel 

 Improved lighting 

 Refreshing artwork (run as a community outreach project) 

 Improving general safety 
 
Once a firm project plan has been established, and the funding is secured, all 
information and a work programme will be available within the project documents. 
 
1.6 Meeting with Kwasi for Sunbury businesses 
 
Consultation with borough and Surrey councillors to organise and facilitate a 
dedicated meeting for Sunbury businesses with the local MP and Business 
Secretary, Kwasi Kwarteng. 
 
This proved popular (45 attendees) and showed there is an appetite from businesses 
to meet and hear from a wide range of stakeholders that influence how they are able 
to run their businesses.   
 

Future events of this type with Kwasi covering the other towns within the borough 
have been planned, with a more ‘surgery’ style to them, but the recent events with 
the Essex MP have meant that these are now being reviewed.       
 

1.7 Spelthorne Business Hub/Spelthorne Business Forum 
 
Promoting the advantages of this facility to businesses across all towns.  Ideal 
meeting venue, home of the SBF and a business knowledge centre for all to utilise.   
 

Page 14



 

 
 

1.8 Plans for 2022 
 

1.9 Cost-savings scheme 
 
The pilot will be completed and assuming results are as expected, will examine the 
possibilities of extending this offer beyond the pilot stage as an integral part of the 
desire to making this a great place to do business.  As mentioned, the current energy 
crisis will have far-reaching effects on all of our business sectors and this project 
allows Spelthorne to be at the forefront of delivering informed, impartial advice that 
will save our businesses costs. 
 
1.10 ARG Capital Equipment Grant  
 
Will need to work with all businesses across the towns to ensure that they could 
make their operation more effective through the grant for capital equipment.  This 
has to be done well before the end of March so urgently need to engage with 
businesses.  Early work has started on understanding exactly what is needed and 
where but there will be a need to actively encourage applications for this grant.  
 
1.11 Business Engagement 
 
There is a need to continue to build better and more effective links to all businesses 
within the towns.    
 
Sadly, most businesses do not join or get involved with local groups, forums or 
organisations, and the only contact they will usually have from their local authority is 
when they are asked to pay business rates or some means of enforcement. 
 

Economic Development / Town Centre Management is ideally placed to ‘bridge’ that 
disconnect and help businesses by connecting them to all opportunities (locally, 
regionally, nationally), informing and advising them on behalf of other internal 
departments and working on solutions to make Spelthorne the best place for them to 
do business.      
 

1.12 Activities 
 
A series of events will be organised for all towns across 2022. 
 
Work with town groups will take place to produce Christmas activities - Ashford 
Christmas Market, Sunbury Christmas Market, Shepperton Artisans’ Market.  Still a 
lot of trepidation about events as we approach the winter months – Big Tree Night is 
not happening, but Little Tree Night might be. 
 

Ashford potentially has a new ‘event’ area at the new Brooklands Development but 
currently waiting to understand how best use can be made of this. 
 
Shepperton has a perfect ‘market’ venue at the Village Hall carpark, so work is in 
progress on a regular monthly market there.  There has been very positive feedback 
from retailers and the community so this will be confirmed asap. 
 

Page 15



 

 
 

Sunbury Cross is not so conducive to running events, but conversations are taking 
place with the shopping centre management to investigate how best use can be 
made of the parking area as an attraction for customers.    
 
 

 

2. Options analysis and proposal 

2.1 Not applicable 

3. Financial implications 

£5,000 to instigate the Cost-savings pilot 

4. Other considerations 

4.1 There are none 

5. Equality and Diversity 

5.1 The impact on equality and diversity issues is considered at every action 

6. Sustainability/Climate Change Implications 

6.1 Use of the ARG funding has potential to have a positive impact on the 
environment through new equipment which is greener and less polluting. 

7. Timetable for implementation 

7.1 By March 2022 

 
Background papers:  There are none. 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A – Shepperton Overview 
Appendix B – Sunbury Overview 
Appendix C – Ashford Overview 

Page 16



 

 

 

Shepperton Town (Village) Centre/High Street 
 

 
 
This report has predominantly been created though online research with some physical visits 
and is designed to be a working document that can be added to as more information is 
received.    
 
In terms of GDPR, everything in this report and any accompanying spreadsheet is ‘manifestly 
in the public domain’.   
 
The collection and storing of any future details will be checked for compliance before being 
included. 
 
 
 
Geographical area 
 
 
This report and the accompanying spreadsheet covers the main shopping/town centre area 
of Shepperton, predominantly comprising the businesses in High Street with some ancillary 
areas such as Araby Corner, Old Chorlton Road, Station Approach and Green Lane. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Overview 
 
 
The High Street/Town Centre area of Shepperton comprises approx. 82 units/businesses. 
 
The majority of majority of the businesses are retail with a limited number of non-retail 
businesses spread throughout.  The town benefits from a petrol station, which also includes 
a small M&S convenience store, on the High Street.   
 
There are 3 high profile national convenience store/supermarket brands situated in the 
town;  
 
Sainsburys 
M&S 
Co-op 
 
The town has 2 excellent and well run butchers and a great ‘local’ fruit & veg store.  All three 
businesses have shown real commitment to the community during the current pandemic 
and have a very loyal following. 
 
The fruit & veg store have introduced a regular ‘market’ area at the back of the unit every 
Saturday to help both local producers and residents during lockdown. 
 
There is a large, independent pharmacy in town and a Boots.  
 
There is a Corals and a Prezzo Restaurant – all other units are local/independent. 
 
The town benefits from a Post Office and a library. 
 
There are no public toilets. 
 
There are no fast food chains. 
 
Overall, Shepperton High Street has the look and feel of an old-fashioned ‘village’ – there 
is a great sense of community and pride in ‘their’ town. 
 
 
‘Hidden gems’ – there is a refurbished Pullman railway carriage 50 yards from the High 
Street that no-one can see.  This is privately owned but, if at all possible, would provide a 
great attraction/visual draw. 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
High Street/shopfront business category breakdown 
  
 
 
There are 9 restaurants/take-aways/sandwich bars 
  7 hairdressers/barbers 

4 professional practices 
4 estate/lettings agents 

  4 coffee shops/cafes 
4 charity shops 
3 national convenience stores/supermarkets 
2 opticians 
2 butchers 
2 nail salons 
2 pharmacies 
2 home design/flooring 
2 dentists 
2 public houses 

  2 dry cleaners/launderette 
  2 funeral directors 
  2 vets 

2 building services 
2 taxi firms 

  1 homecare/DIY 
1 florist 
1 boutique/clothes shop 
1 sports & school clothing 
1 betting shop 
1 car dealership 
1 courier  
1 petrol station 
1 post office 
1 Royal Mail depot 
1 card/gift shop 
1 day nursery 
1 newsagent 
1 printers (masonic) 
1 tanning salon 
1 mobile phone repairs 
1 property maintenance 
1 sports & occupational injury clinic 
1 engineering company 
1 locksmith/engraver 
1 gym/fitness studio 
1 fruit & veg 
1 auto repairs/garage 

 
 

Page 19



 
 
 
 
 
 
Visual 
 
Shepperton has a very pretty and welcoming High Street.  There are a number of 
flower/planting areas (maintained by local groups), the ‘big’ tree, and a decorative boat on 
the roundabout at one end of the High Street – all of which give the feel of an engaged 
community village.     
 
There are a number of signposts around the station area which are not pointing in the 
correct direction. 
 
There is plenty of free and available parking on both the main road and the recessed roads in 
front of all shops.  This is backed up by a small amount of customer parking at Sainsburys.  
There is also a small council car park (paid).  
 
 
 
 
Void units 
 
 
There are currently 7 void units in the town centre area.  Both the old NatWest and Barclays 
units are large units which could be potentially split.   
 
One of the units (on Thurlestone Parade) is currently being fitted out. 
 
 
 
Advertising/Promotion/Digital 
 
The level of clear, informative and accurate online information that prospective customers 
can find about Shepperton businesses needs improvement. 
 
Approx. 35-40% of businesses have little or no online presence at all.   
 
As in other towns, many business listings on the first page of Google seem to be from review 
sites such as allinlondon.com, openinghours.co.uk, nearer.com. 
 
These have incomplete and, in a lot of cases, inaccurate info.   
 
Many smaller companies (such as nail bars etc) will just have a Facebook page instead of a 
website.  This can be perfectly okay for certain businesses and marketing is never a ‘one size 
fits all’ solution but there is a huge need for better understanding of how to promote your 
business to potential customers. 
 

Page 20



In terms of social media, the spreadsheet shows the companies that have a social media 
presence and, where possible, how many follows they have and how often they use these 
platforms. 
 
As would be expected, the most widely used platform is still Facebook.  The professions tend 
to use Twitter.  
 
For many businesses such as hairdressers, beauty etc – the growing importance of Instagram 
is clear.  
 
The need for better use of all forms of advertising is clear.   
 
There are existing ‘town/community’ social media pages.   
 
Friends of Shepperton has over 11,000 followers and is a well respected source of local 
information.  
 
Sunbury & Shepperton Matters has over approx. 3,500 followers and is connected to the 
Shepperton Matters magazine.  We have already received coverage in the magazine so there 
is a great opportunity for appropriate ‘business’ messages on their social media as well.    
 
 
Food businesses/Hygiene ratings 
 
Of the 20 food outlets throughout the town; - 
 
10 are rated 5 
4 are rated 4 
2 are rated 3 
1 is rated 2 
3 are unknown 
 
 
Spelthorne Business Forum 
 
 
Of the businesses within the ‘town centre’ area – only 1 (Shepperton Dental Care) is a 
member with a listing on the SBF website.   
 
This gives both a problem and an opportunity.   
 
Obviously, the more that we promote the SBF the more members it will have and the more 
it will grow and have an influence.  BUT, should the support we offer business in Shepperton 
be dependent on them having to join a ‘separate’ organisation? 
 
The vast majority of the businesses that we need to be supporting and working with are 
exactly the businesses that do not join groups and that all membership organisations find 
the hardest to engage.   
 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sunbury (Sunbury Cross & Lower Sunbury) 
 

 
 
 
 
This report has predominantly been created though online research with some physical visits 
and is designed to be a working document that can be added to as more information is 
received.    
 
In terms of GDPR, everything in this and any accompanying spreadsheet is ‘manifestly in the 
public domain’.   
 
The collection and storing of any future details will be checked for compliance before being 
included. 
 
 
 
 
 
Geographical area 
 
 
This report and the accompanying spreadsheet covers the main shopping area of Sunbury 
Cross around the M3 roundabout (including Grosvenor House) as well as the area of Lower 
Sunbury comprising The Avenue, Thames Street and Green Street.   
 
This does not cover the industrial areas of Hanworth Road, Trade City Business Park or 
Windmill Business Village which are adjacent to Sunbury Cross although these are of 
economic significance. 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



 
 
 
 
Overview 
 
 
 
There are two distinct areas of Sunbury – Sunbury Cross and Lower Sunbury. 
 
The Sunbury Cross area comprises approx. 47 units/businesses. 
 
Sunbury Cross contains the shopping centre, which has a number of well-known national 
brands including an M&S Food Hall.   There is a large Premier Inn hotel adjacent. 
 
The opposite side of the main road (The Parade) has a good selection of small independent 
retailers as well as some known brands such as Greggs, Papa Johns & William Hill as well as a 
small number of non-retail businesses.  
 
The Parade benefits from a Post Office and a library. 
 
The Shopping Centre does not have a website or any digital promotion. 
 
 
Lower Sunbury has the advantage of it’s position close to the Thames and is home to a 
number of attractive ‘riverside’ pubs as well as the ‘gem of the Walled Garden.  Sunbury 
Park is central to the area. 
 
It is a very attractive and inviting place and has the feel of a quaint village.   
 
The retail areas are mainly spread over the 3 roads – The Avenue, Thames Street and Green 
Street – which can make the different areas feel disconnected.    
 
The units are all small/independent and there seems to be a really good relationship 
between the retailers especially in The Avenue – a ‘business community’. 
 
The Avenue benefits from a Post Office. 
 
There are no public toilets. 
 
There are no fast food chains. 
 
‘Hidden gems’ – not so much hidden, but the Walled Garden is an amazing space that is a 
real visitor attraction 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



 
 
 
 
High Street/shopfront business category breakdown (Combined Sunbury Cross & Lower 
Sunbury) 
  
 
 
There are 7 convenience stores/supermarkets 

6 hairdressers/barbers 
6 public houses (all Lower Sunbury) 
6 professional practices 
5 estate/lettings agents 
4 nail salons 
3 coffee shops/cafes 
2 Chinese restaurants 
2 charity shops 
2 fast food/take-aways 
2 opticians 
2 pharmacies 
2 Indian restaurants 

  2 dry cleaners/launderette 
2 funeral directors 
1 hotel 
1 Italian restaurant 
1 fish & chip shop 
1 arts charity organisation 
1 home installation 
1 bakery 
1 national sandwich shop (Greggs) 
1 national food store (M&S) 

  1 homecare/DIY 
1 cycle and car parts 
1 glass & glazing company 
1 shopping centre management 
1 freight forwarding company 
1 electronic device design company 
1 bathroom & kitchen design company 
1 florist 
1 building society 
1 boutique/clothes shop 
1 menswear shop 
1 beauty parlour 
1 dog grooming 
3 betting shops  
1 post office 
1 card shop 
1 newsagent 
1 tanning salon 
1 travel agency 
1 wine merchant/off licence 
1 gym/fitness studio 

 
 

Page 25



 
Visual 
 
Sunbury Cross is situated ‘around’ the main M3 junction roundabout which, whilst offering a 
lot of passing traffic and therefore high visibility for any business, does make it feel 
inaccessible.  The retail units on the opposite side of the road to the shopping centre are not 
easily accessed.  There is good pedestrian access through the walkways ‘under’ the 
roundabout but these can be areas that are off-putting for parts of the community – 
especially evening/night.  
 
There is a clocktower and some seating along The Parade but this is not currently an inviting 
area to use.  
 
There is excellent free parking along The Parade and ample parking in the shopping centre – 
although there seems to be an issue between the two parking ‘providers’ at the shopping 
centre.   
 
Lower Sunbury has a much more ‘village’ feel to it and the adjacent position to the Thames 
make sit a great place for visitors – there are a number of very good pubs in the area.  
 
Again, there is good provision of short term, free parking as well as ample paid parking in the 
Orchard Meadow, Green Street and Walled Garden car parks. 
 
 
 
Void units 
 
 
There are currently 2 void units in the Sunbury Cross shopping centre and one unit on 
Thames Street in Lower Sunbury.  
 
 
Advertising/Promotion/Digital 
 
As with all the towns, the level of clear, informative and accurate online information that 
prospective customers can find about Sunbury businesses needs improvement. 
 
As mentioned above, The Sunbury Cross shopping centre does not have a website or any 
digital promotion that I can find!! 
 
Some businesses have little or no online presence at all.  Many have a website but no social 
media presence – others have some social media presence but no website.    
 
Many smaller companies (such as nail bars etc) will just have a Facebook page instead of a 
website.  This can be perfectly okay for certain businesses and marketing is never a ‘one size 
fits all’ solution but there is a huge need for better understanding of how to promote your 
business to potential customers. 
 
As in other towns, many business listings on the first page of Google seem to be from review 
sites such as allinlondon.com, openinghours.co.uk, nearer.com. 
 

Page 26



 
 
These have incomplete and, in a lot of cases, inaccurate info.   
 
In terms of social media, the spreadsheet shows the companies that have a social media 
presence and, where possible, how many follows they have and how often they use these 
platforms. 
 
As would be expected, the most widely used platform is still Facebook.  The professions tend 
to use Twitter.  
 
It’s not completely uniform but the growing importance of Instagram is clear – especially for 
certain types of business.  
 
The need for better use of all forms of advertising is clear.   
 
There are existing ‘town/community’ social media pages.   
 
Sunbury on Thames has a community Facebook page with approx. 8,000 followers and looks 
like it is well used by locals.   
 
Sunbury & Shepperton Matters has over approx. 3,500 followers and is connected to the 
Sunbury Matters magazine.  We have already received coverage in this series of magazines 
so there is a great opportunity for appropriate ‘business’ messages on their social media as 
well.    
 
 
Food businesses/Hygiene ratings 
 
Of the 23 food outlets throughout the town; - 
 
9 are rated 5 
7 are rated 4 
5 are rated 3 
1 is rated 1 
1 is unknown 
 
 
Spelthorne Business Forum 
 
 
Of the businesses within the ‘town centre’ area – 5 are members with a listing on the SBF 
website.   
 
This is consistent across the other towns and gives both a problem and an opportunity.   
 
Obviously, the more that we promote the SBF the more members it will have and the more 
it will grow and have an influence.  BUT, should the support we offer business in Sunbury be 
dependent on them having to join a ‘separate’ organisation? 
 

Page 27



The vast majority of the businesses that we need to be supporting and working with are 
exactly the businesses that do not join groups and that all membership organisations find 
the hardest to engage.   
 

 

 

Page 28



 

 

 

 

 

Ashford Town Centre/High Street 
 

 
 
This report and the accompanying spreadsheet has predominantly been created though 
online research with some physical visits and is designed to be a working document that can 
be added to as more information is received.    
 
In terms of GDPR, everything in the spreadsheet is ‘manifestly in the public domain’.   
 
The collection and storing of any future details will be checked for compliance before being 
included. 
 
 
 
Geographical area 
 
 
This report and the accompanying spreadsheet covers the main shopping/town centre area 
of Ashford, comprising the businesses in Woodthorpe Road, Station Approach, Station Road, 
Church Road, New Parade, Church Parade & Fir Tree Place. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 
 
 
 
 
 
Overview 
 
 
The High Street/Town Centre area of Ashford comprises approx. 162 units/businesses. 
 
The majority of majority of the businesses are retail with a limited number of non-retail 
businesses spread throughout.  The town does benefit from The Atrium - a serviced office 
unit in the centre of town.  This houses approx. 20 companies although the size and total 
employee number of these is not currently known.  
 
There is additional office space in Chapel House in Woodthorpe Road but companies and 
details are not currently known.  
 
There is a small selection of high profile national convenience store/supermarket brands 
situated in the town; - 
 
Sainsburys 
Tescos 
Co-op 
Londis 
 
As well as national brand fast-food and coffee shops; - 
 
KFC 
Subway 
Costa Coffee 
And there’s even a Wimpy 
 
(There is a McDonalds but this is situated outside of the town centre on the A30). 
 
Boots, Superdrug, Lloyds Pharmacy provide well-known pharmacy brands and NatWest, 
Barclays and Santander have branches in the town. 
 
William Hill & Coral have units in town as does Card Factory. 
 
There is a Post Office and a library. 
 
 
That leaves a high number of independent retailers. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



 
 
High Street/shopfront business category breakdown 
 
 
 
There are 14 hairdressers/barbers 
  18 restaurants/take-aways/sandwich bars 

8 professional practices 
8 home design/furnishing 
7 estate/lettings agents 

  7 coffee shops/sandwich bars 
6 take-aways (burger/pizza/fish & chips) 
6 charity shops 
5 medical (acupuncturist, surgery, chiropodist, ultrasound, osteopathy) 
5 nail salons 
4 pharmacies 
3 building & construction (fire alarms, heating & plumbing, building)  
3 banks  
3 dentists 

  3 dry cleaners 
  3 funeral directors 

3 beauty parlours 
3 vape stores 
2 bakers 

  2 florists 
2 clothes shops 
2 betting shops 
2 wine shops 
2 opticians 
2 fancy dress shops 
1 butcher 
1 post office 
1 card shop 
1 newsagent 
1 printing & copying 
1 cobbler/key cutting 
1 jeweller 
1 mobile phone retailer 
1 electrical wholesaler 
1 ice cream parlour (?) 
1 bargain store 
1 taxi firm 
1 antiques 
1 engraver 
1 cycle shop 
1 gym/fitness studio 
1 homecare services 
1 tattoo parlour 
1 teaching studio 
1 political party office 
1 photographic studio 
1 pet supplies 
1 fruit & veg 
1 motor garage 
1 driving test centre 

Page 31



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Visual 
 
The main retail area through the town does not look inviting.  Many of the shopfronts look 
outdated and ‘tired’.  There is a really nice clock in the centre – but it doesn’t work.  There 
are signs for the toilets – but no toilets. 
 
There is a large, central and very cheap car park – but it is unattractive, very dark and dirty.   
 
Whilst these factors are not ideal, it does give the opportunity for improvements.    
 
 
 
 
 
Void units 
 
 
There are currently 10 void units in the town centre area.   
 
This may of course change when the effects of the latest lockdown are seen over the coming 
weeks.   
 
On the positive side, there are a couple of void units that may actually only be temporarily 
shut due to the current situation. More investigation is needed on these. 
 
 
 
Advertising/Promotion/Digital 
 
The level of clear, informative and accurate online information that prospective customers 
can find about Ashford businesses is very poor. 
 
Approx. 35-40% of businesses have little or no online presence at all.   
As such, many business listings on the first page of Google seem to be from review sites such 
as allinlondon.com, openinghours.co.uk, nearer.com. 
 
These have incomplete and, in a lot of cases, inaccurate info.   
 
Many smaller companies will just have a Facebook page instead of a website.  This can be 
perfectly okay for certain businesses and marketing is never a ‘one size fits all’ solution but 
there is a huge need for better understanding of how to promote your business to potential 
customers. 
 

Page 32



In terms of social media, the spreadsheet shows the companies that have a social media 
presence and, where possible, how many follows they have and how often they use these 
platforms. 
 
As would be expected, the most widely used platform is still Facebook.  The professions tend 
to use Twitter.  
 
For many businesses such as hairdressers, beauty etc – the growing importance of Instagram 
is clear.  
 
The need for better use of all forms of advertising is clear.   
 
There are existing ‘town/community’ social media pages.   
 
Ashford Wide has over 2,000 followers and features a lot of great ‘business’ information. 
 
Ashford Local has over 6,000 followers so there is a great opportunity for appropriate 
‘business’ messages there.   
 
 
 
Food businesses/Hygiene ratings 
 
Of the food outlets throughout the town; - 
 
15 are rated 5 
6 are rated 4 
3 are rated 3 
1 is awaiting inspection 
2 are unknown 
 
 
 
Spelthorne Business Forum 
 
 
Of the businesses within the ‘town centre’ area – only 4 are members with a listing on the 
SBF website.   
 
This gives both a problem and an opportunity.   
 
Obviously, the more that we promote the SBF the more members it will have and the more 
it will grow and have an influence.  BUT, should the support we offer business in Ashford be 
dependent on them having to join a ‘separate’ organisation? 
 
The vast majority of the businesses that we need to be supporting and working with are 
exactly the businesses that do not join groups and that all membership organisations find 
the hardest to engage.   
 
As stated elsewhere, their level of engagement (whether it be through groups, forums, 
digital, e-commerce etc) is very limited.     

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Version: 1, Last saved: 08/11/21 13:33 

Economic Development Committee  

 

16 November 2021 

 

1. Key issues 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide a written update with regards to one 
specific element of the Economic Development Recovery Plan. 

1.2 The Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG) is a fund allocated by the 
Government to all local authorities based upon population size in order to 
provide financial assistance for those business severely impacted by COVID-
19.  The government referred to this as a ‘Discretionary Grant’ as each local 
authority could decide how to allocate the funding based on its local 
understanding of its economy.   

1.3 The first allocation of funds from Government occurred in April 2020 when 
£711.000 was allocated and distributed by way of grants. Further grants 
totalling £2,883,799 were allocated up to January 2021.   

1.4 There have been 4 windows of opportunity for businesses to apply for an 
ARG from Spelthorne Council.  At the end of the 3rd window £2,257,799 was 
still available to support businesses.  The grants have been advertised 
through the Council web pages, social media and the Spelthorne Business 
Forum; additionally, businesses that had applied previously have been 
contacted directly to make them aware of new windows. 

1.5 Great care and time is taken to consider these applications to mitigate the risk 
of fraudulent claims; each application involves at least 2 officers to scrutinise 
the information provided. 

1.6 The 4th window opened on 1st July and closed on 18th July 2021 resulting in 
122 applications.  To date 100% of the applications have been reviewed and 

Title Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG)  

Purpose of the report Update Committee on use of the ARG 

Report Author Keith McGroary Economic development Manager 

Ward(s) Affected All Wards 

Exempt No 

Exemption Reason N/A 

Corporate Priority Economic Development 

Recommendations 

 

Committee is asked to: 

Note the report  

Reason for 
Recommendation 

 ‘Not applicable’. 

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



 
 

49 of those businesses have received a payment with a total value of 
£268,500 so £1,930,000 remains to be spent. 

2. Options analysis and proposal 

2.1 The ARG Task Group met on 15th September where proposals we made in 
relation to the next and final stage of support. Councillors on this Task Group 
considered each of the proposals in detail, asked challenging questions and 
made valuable contributions.  At the end of the session, they advised that 
they were comfortable with the proposals set out by officers.  They were very 
keen for the work to assist businesses should proceed as soon as possible, 
but also that there needed to be a mechanism to review outcomes) and 
whether later down the line the support had actually helped the businesses.  
This report is attached as Appendix ‘A’. 

2.2 The support provided for businesses to date has been by way of a direct 
credit to the businesses bank account of up to £10k over 4 windows of 
opportunity; this Phase 1 is described as the ‘survival’ support.    

2.3 Phase 2 is the ‘Recovery and Strengthen’ stage; this consists of a programme 
of support designed to give businesses the best chance of improving their 
competitiveness, turnover, and success.  This will be achieved through 3 key 
interventions.  More details are contained within Appendix ‘A’. 

Improve equipment:  Help improve the competitiveness of businesses by 
upgrading the ‘tools’ that they use to compete for business.  Businesses will 
be invited to apply for funding to purchase new or replacement equipment to 
make their business more efficient, effective and productive. 

 
People Skills:  Improve the skills and abilities of our business owners by the 
provision of professional business support and training. 

 
Make best use of Technology:  To make the best use of digital technology so 
that they can compete on-line / utilising social media as well as through bricks 
and mortar.  Training has already been booked to provide hands-on digital / 
social media training over 5 weeks for 2 hours in the evening starting on 11th 
November. 

2.4  

3. Financial implications 

3.1 The funding is available for Spelthorne Council to dispense until 31 March 
2022; any money not spent must be returned to the government.  As we 
reach January 2022 the Committee will need to take stock in respect of the 
amount of funding that is left and identify the best means of utilising any ARG 
that is left to best support our businesses. 

3.2 No decision can be taken until it is known how much funding is left, but one 
option may be to provide addition funding to businesses that are selected 
because they offer the best opportunities to grow and take on extra staff as a 
result of the funds.  There will be a further Task Group meeting to consider 
any options in detail before the Committee is updated. 

4. Other considerations 

4.1 There are none. 

Page 36



 
 

5. Equality and Diversity 

5.1 The impact on equality and diversity issues is considered at every action 

6. Sustainability/Climate Change Implications 

6.1 Use of the ARG funding has potential to have a positive impact on the 
environment through new equipment which is greener and less polluting. 

7. Timetable for implementation 

7.1 October / November 2021 open applications for funding of equipment, provide 
digital training and procure business support.  

7.2 January 2022 take stock of how much funding is left and agree how to best 
allocate the remaining funds prior to 31 March 2022. 

 
Background papers:  
There are none. 
 
Appendices: 
‘A’ Report to the ARG Task Group 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix ‘A’ 
 

ARG Task Group 
 

ARG Potential Initiatives to help businesses to become stronger and more competitive. 
 

 
Background: 
Spelthorne Council have been allocated funding from the government called an Additional 
Restrictions Grant (ARG) to help support businesses during the pandemic.  At the beginning 
of August there was £2.2m funding available under this scheme which could be used until 
31.3.22.  Any monies unspent after that date will be returned to government.  The 
government has said that there will be no more support via ARG for businesses once this 
money has been spent. 

It is anticipated that the latest round of grants is likely to cost about £500k.  Spelthorne has 
4 windows of opportunity for businesses to apply for a grant; the main purpose of this 
phase was to help businesses ‘survive’ the economic impact of the pandemic. 

The next phase of support is centred around helping make our businesses stronger.  It is 
likely that there will be at least £1.5m left to support businesses and it is important we 
utilise all this golden opportunity to do just this. 

Conversations with BEIS (Department of Business Energy & Industrial Strategy) confirmed 
that this funding could be used for other purposes other than just grants.  But the key 
caveat was that it must provide ‘DIRECT’ support for businesses.  With this guidance in mind 
the below proposals are suggested as a way of helping our businesses 

 
 

New / Replacement Equipment 

 Any new equipment which can be shown to help the business become more 
competitive / productive can apply for a grant of 90% of the cost of the item(s) up to 
a maximum of £20k.   This could include new and greener equipment, which is more 
cost effective and efficient reducing the amount it costs to run, maintain, and repair.  
It is also likely to be less damaging to the environment adding to the company’s 
green credentials. 
 
For instance, the dry cleaning and printing industries use equipment that is reliant on 
solvents and chemicals that are quite polluting, some may be old and costly to run / 
maintain.  There are new more efficient and eco-friendly alternatives available which 
could improve production and reduce their carbon footprint. 
 
Old machinery / equipment which breaks down frequently reduces productivity and   
in turn the turnover of the business including computers. 
The new equipment could mean more production, cost savings, and make them 
more competitive which are ingredients to create employment opportunities. 
 

Page 39



Improve the frontage of independent shops to improve the appearance of a location, 
boost customers and increase trade 
 
All businesses awarded the grant will be asked to buy within the Borough, but we 
cannot enforce that. 
 
For the above, it is proposed that the amount of funding awarded is based initially 
upon the number of employees, but with a degree of flexibility in exceptional 
circumstances.   
 

 Sole trader up to £5k 
 

 Less than 5 employees up to £10k 
 

 More than 5 employees £20k 
 

Factors that can influence the amount: 
 

 The length of time the business has been incorporated / operating. 
 

 Volume of turnover / profits 
 

 Quality of submission – has a case been made that it will boost production / create 
jobs / increase competitiveness / ability to grow the business 
 

 
Business support 

 
Digital 

 A programme of digital training could be made available to help the ‘bricks and 
mortar’ businesses to expand their offer by the provision of training through a 
variety of social media and digital workshops giving them the life-long skills to 
promote their business and combine bricks with the digital world.  This can be 
through a presence on Facebook, Tic Tok, Snapchat, Pinterest and Twitter etcetera. 

 

 Provision of the building of bespoke websites for those businesses that do not have 
an on-line presence.  This will enable them to reach out locally and further afield 
through their website which can be reached 24/7 when the shop is closed to take 
orders or attract customers.  This would include Google my Business 
https://blog.hootsuite.com/google-my-business/  

 
Face -to-Face Support 

 Business support via one-to-one help / training to address concerns or ambitions 
about running a business, including HR, finance, business planning, marketing, 
growth, starting a business and much more.  This could be for 1 year or 2 years 
support. 
 

Page 40

https://blog.hootsuite.com/google-my-business/


 Provision of annual membership of the FSB or Chambers of Commerce for 
businesses that may need regular support.  Could set aside £2k which may buy 
around 10 memberships, but the cost depends upon the size of business. 

 
Training/Grants 

 Free grants for training relevant to that business, this may include new skills and 
qualifications to support activities such as exporting, accessing new markets or skills 
required to improve efficiency for the business owner / employee to be more 
productive.  This relates to training that is not available via apprenticeship scheme. 

 
The above opportunities are designed to help: - 

 

 Improve equipment:  Help improve the competitiveness of businesses by upgrading 
the ‘tools’ that they use to compete for business. 

 

 People Skills:  Improve the skills and abilities of our business owners by the provision 
of professional business support and training. 

 

 Make best use of Technology:  To make the best use of digital technology so that 
they can compete on-line / utilising social media as well as through bricks and 
mortar. 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Version: 1, Last saved: 08/11/21 13:31 

Economic Development Committee  

 

16 November 2021 

 

1. Key issues 

1.1 The Economic Strategy was adopted in February 2017 and had a lifespan of 
5 years to 2022.  Before the strategy can be written it is important that an 
economic assessment takes place so that the strategy can be written from an 
informed position. 

2. Options analysis and proposal 

2.1 The local economic assessment is a research paper containing information 
about the borough that would be helpful towards the compilation of an 
economic assessment.  This is an ‘information’ document, so the purpose of 
the report is to ask the Economic Development Committee to note the report 
and make any relevant comments regarding its content.   This is a draft report 
and further work needs to be done in respect of the contents / index pages.  
Additionally, in December 2021 a final review will take place where some of 
the existing research will be replaced by more recent data so it is as up to 
date as possible by the end of 2021. 

3. Financial implications 

3.1 There are none 

4. Other considerations 

4.1 The impact on equality and diversity issues is considered at every action 

5. Equality and Diversity 

Title Local Economic Assessment Update 

Purpose of the report To note 

Report Author Keith McGroary Economic Development Manager 

Ward(s) Affected All Wards 

Exempt No     

Exemption Reason N/A 

Corporate Priority Economic Development 

Recommendations 

 

Committee is asked to: 

 

Note and comment 

 

Reason for 
Recommendation 

No decision required 

Page 43

Agenda Item 9



 
 

5.1 The research will is likely to identify some areas that may offer opportunities 
to address equality and diversity disparities.  

6. Sustainability/Climate Change Implications 

6.1 The research may identify opportunities to improve the environment as areas 
for improvement are identified. 

7. Timetable for implementation 

7.1 This report will be put to use with immediate effect so that the new Economic 
Strategy or Prosperity Strategy can be written. 

 
Background papers: There are none. 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix ‘A’ Draft Economic Assessment 

Page 44



 

 

 Appendix ‘A’  

 

Draft Local Economic Assessment  

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Local Economic Assessment 2021 

 

 

Page 45



 

 

 

Page 46



 

3 
 

Executive Summary  

This assessment explains through a wide range of both published information and new 

research a fairly detailed assessment in relation to the Spelthorne economy. It has been 

written in unpresedented times with the Covid pandemic and in the first year since the UK 

leaving the European Union.   

  

1. It shows the economy is made up by a complex interaction of businesses, employees 

and consumers but it is not self-contained.  

2. Spelthorne lies in a traditionally economically buoyant area to the west of London and 

is within north Surrey, although like all other areas of the UK, it is in the process of 

recovery from the pandemic. Therefore throughout this assessment benchmarks its 

position with adjoining areas as well as the rest of Surrey to provide context to each 

aspect of the economy that is set out. Additionally the data also seeks to illustrate the 

position of Spelthorne in 2016 when the last economic assessment was completed, 

where we are now, and what that journey tells us about the economy.  

3. Spelthorne has significant strengths with a large business base and a wide range of 

business sectors represented including a significant presence of businesses of 

national and international renown.  This is further strengthened by its proximity to 

Heathrow Airport and its good communication links to London and the rest of the UK. 

However, having such a large reliance upon a single employer also comes with its 

risks, as we have seen a significant loss of jobs by those residents who rely heavily 

upon this industry for employment as well as its supply chain.  During the pandemic 

there were also a disproportionate amount of the Spelthorne community who were 

furloughed as the airport all but closed down for passengers, and relied upon cargo to 

generate an income.  It has a significant retail sector including two shopping centres in 

Staines-upon-Thames, which is focussed largely on meeting the needs of local 

residents and those situated outside the fringes of our geographical boundaries.  

4. Unemployment levels have risen significantly over the last year due to Covid 19 at a 

greater rate than Surrey, the southeast or indeed Great Britain; this was exacerbated 

by the reliance upon jobs at Heathrow Airport where pre-COVID around 3,700 of our 

residents relied directly on jobs within the airport.  

5. Unemployment in the 16 to 64 age group within the Borough peaked in November 

2020 with the highest percentage across Surrey at 5.7% compared to 1.5% in 2019.  

This figure dropped to 4.1% in September 2021 which is positive news and suggests 

that we are on the road to recovery; this compares to 5% in Great Britain 

6. Education in the borough has seen a signicant improvement with the number of 16-64 

year olds with an NVQ 4 or higher.  In 2016 there were 37.8% with this level when the 

last LEA was produced, whilst Surrey had 47.8%.  In 2020 Surrey average was 53.4% 

and Spelthorne achieved 54%, so now boasts a higher level of qualifications 

compared to the average in the county.   

7. At the time of preparing this assessment the UK economy has had a testing period 

with covid 19 entering its second year and the impact of leaving the EU.  

In 2020/21 economic growth was down 2.4% in qtr1, -20.8% in qtr2 and -8.6% in qtr3. 

For the 4th quarter predictions are -4.2%1.   

8. Heathrow passenger numbers from the first lockdown in March 2020 to  

         December 2020 compared  to the same period in 2019 were down 84.9% from   
         69,547,441 to 10,568,4942 

                                                
1
 ONS January 2021 

2
 Heathrow January 2021 

Page 47



 

 

9. This economic assessment will be the key tool to help inform the contents and actions 

contained in the new 2022 – 2027 Economic Strategy.     

 

1. Introduction .......................................................................................................     5 

2. Overview of the Borough .................................................................................     6 

3. Transport ……………………………………………………………………………...   10 

 

4. COVID-19:  Economic Impact on Spelthorne Jobs and Businesses ……….  14 

                                    

5. The pandemic and its impact on different age groups ………………………..  19 

 

6. Population / Employment within Spelthorne ……………………………………  23 

 

7. Business Sectors …………………………………………………………………….  27 

 

8. Retail Performance …………………………………………………………………..  29 

9. Business Births & Deaths …………………………………………………………..  31 

 

10. Business and Enterprise ……………………………………………………………  33 

11. Support for Small Businesses ……………………………………………………..  44 

12. Business Turnover …………………………………………………………………… 45 

13. Economic Performance ……………………………………………………………..  46 

 

14. Staines-upon-Thames BID ………………………………………………………….  51 

15. Skills and Qualifications ……………………………………………………………. 53 

16. Quality of Life - Health and Wellbeing …………………………………………... 55 

17. Deprivation ……………………………………………………………………………. 62 

18. Superfast Broadband ……………………………………………………………….. 65 

19. Natural Environment ………………………………………………………………... 65 

 

20. Business Organisations in Spelthorne and the Wider Area …………………. 68 

21. Sustainability …………………………………………………………………………. 70 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

Page 48



 

5 
 

 

                                        Spelthorne Local Economic Assessment 2021 

  

1.  Introduction   

1.1 The purpose of this Local Economic Assessment (LEA) is to clearly show the various 

elements that make up the Spelthorne economy. This is done by presenting a wide 

range of economic information from which the main characteristics of the Borough can 

be understood. It will inform a new economic strategy 2022 – 2027 so that a coherent 

and focused set of actions to further improve the economy and help address any 

blockages to  local growth and help achieve economic success 

1.2 Economies by their nature involve a complex interlinking of activities which have local, 

regional, national and international dimensions, the global pandemic has also 

impacted on how these elements interlink with each other.  For this reason a local 

authority’s administrative area cannot be treated as if it were a self contained 

economic area.  This is particularly true for Spelthorne where it is part of the Heathrow 

area economy, part of the wider outer West London area, and also of the Thames 

Valley area and North West Surrey.   This LEA is being prepared in unprecedented 

times with minus growth figures for the key indicators in 20203. UK GDP – 11%, 

Household consumption – 11.25%, Business Investment -18.75%, Housing 

investment -19.25% and Exports -11.75%. The Bank of England are predicting growth 

figures in these areas for 2022 and 2023.  

1.3 The UK left the EU on 31st December 2020. It is too early to say how this will effect 

the UK economy in the long term. Since leaving the EU the delay in goodsbeening 

held at borders is causing concern with companies moving from sea to air to transport 

the goods which provides some benefit for Heathrow Airport. There is also concern 

about the number of people available for employment with high levels of vacancies 

available, particularly in hospitality, retail and farming sectors (October 2021). The 

impact of leaving the EU has been also been clouded due to the effect on the 

economy due to the Covid pandemic.  Early indicators have shown that there are 

number of key jobs that now appear to lack staff.  HGV drivers have been in the 

headlines brought about by the shortage of fuel at petrol stations and some items 

running short in supernarkets.  Additionally the pig farming industry is under pressure 

with a lack of abattoir staff.  The government has needed to use temporary visas to 

bridge that gap, but time will tell how temporary the use of visas will be to fill key 

vacancies to keep the UK economy running. 

1.4 Experts have forecast that GDP will drop 0.1% (best case scenario) to a drop of 3.9% 

(worst case scenario)4. In a survey by the London School of Economics in January 

2021 of 39 European and US economists 86% believe that the UK economy is likely 

to be several percentage points smaller in 2030 than it would have otherwise been. 

Only a quarter believe the same applies to the EU economy while 41% don’t consider 

that the impact on the EU economy will be strongly negative.  

1.5 A drop in GDP will impact on employment, other occupations could be adversely 

effected  for example the NHS. Due to the impact of Covid it is unclear of employment 

levels moving forward but there could be a lack of resource in various occupations 

due to leaving the EU.  In October 2021 there were just over a million jobs unfilled 

across the country. 

                                                
3 Bank of England monetary policy report November 2020   
4
 Oxford Economics 

Page 49



 

 

1.6 The national and regional economic impact on the economy make it all the more 

important that local councils do what they can to support local buisinesses.  Whilst 

preparing such assessments which is discretionary5 for borough councils, Spelthorne 

Borough Council sees this work as an essential step in preparing an Economic 

Strategy which will set targeted local economic priorities.     

1.7 By their nature economies are dynamic and therefore any LEA can only provide a 

‘snapshot’ of what the economy is like at a particular point in time and based on the 

information that is available  

1.8 This assessment therefore compares available economic data for Spelthorne with 

adjoining areas to get an understanding of its nature, importance and where possible, 

its degree of success  

 

2 Overview of the Borough 

  Spelthorne is a relatively compact area of some six by two and half miles.  It is located 

15 miles from central London and shares its northern border with Heathrow Airport.  

The River Thames defines its long southern boundary.  

  The Borough’s population is approximately 99,800 and has a significant employment 

base. It’s main town is Staines-upon-Thames, the other main urban areas in the 

borough are Ashford, Shepperton, Sunbury-on-Thames, and Stanwell.  

  No part of the open land in the Borough is more than half a mile from the urban area.  

Therefore none of this open land can be regarded as ‘rural’ in the sense that its 

economy is so remote that it needs to have a degree of self-sufficiency and 

independence.  

  Before the covid epademic 6.9% (around 3,500 people) of residents worked at 

Heathrow Airport which had an on-site workforce of approximately 76,000. Its role as 

one the world’s largest international passenger airports and significant air cargo 

function has a economic influence on the wider area, including indirect roles e.g. 

supply chain this rises to 133,600. An estimated 10.6% of these roles were filled from 

Spelthorne residents. The projections (depending on covid travel restrictions) are that 

Heathrow related jobs will return to pre covid levels in 2023 jobs6 

  Staines-upon-Thames is a major shopping centre serving an area well beyond the 

Borough itself, as well as being a large office and commercial centre.  It has direct rail 

access to Waterloo, Reading, Windsor and Weybridge and is less than 10 minutes’ 

drive from the M25 and Terminal 5.  In fact it is the nearest major town centre to 

Heathrow Airport.  

  Sunbury-on-Thames is the second major office location within the Borough with  

Junction 1 of the M3 immediately alongside it.  Sunbury also has BP’s International 

Centre for Business and Technology which is the company’s largest centre in the UK 

with over 5,000 employees. In October 2016 Spelthorne Borough Council purchased 

the BP site leasing it back to BP. Sunbury has several other significant industrial 

estates The Dolphin, Windmill Trading Estates and The Summit Business Park which 

                                                
5
 The Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 only places a statutory 

duty to prepare Local Economic Assessments on County and Unitary Councils. 

 

6 Oxford Economics The economic impact of reduced activity at Heathrow sept 2020 

 

Page 50



 

7 
 

the borough purchased in September 2019, this site includes The Summitt Centre 

which is the location of the boroughs Business Hub which opened in June 2021, all of 

these locations have ready access to the motorway.  

 

2.7 Shepperton is home of the world famous Shepperton Studios and part of the 

Pinewood Studios Group.  Along with BP they represent part of a significant high 

technology presence within the Borough. In 2019 Netflix signed a 10 year lease to 

rent Shepperton Studios. Pinewood have invested £500 million to develop the 

Shepperton site which shows the confidence they have in the borough. Work started 

on the site in March 2021. 

  The current nature of Spelthorne’s economy is, however, very much a product of its 

history.  That history is one of massive growth in the 20th century through the 

production of linoleum which has shaped the economic and social character of the 

Borough today.  In the 40 years between 1921 and 1961 the Borough saw an 

enormous growth in house building with the population increasing more than 

threefold.    

  The origins of this growth lay in London with the decentralisation of industry from 

Inner London.  This process was driven by the shortage of space to expand, high land 

values, poor air quality and congestion.  This decentralisation coincided with an 

enormous growth in manufacturing generally.  Between 1932 and 1938 nearly half of 

all new factories opening in the country employing more than 25 people were in the 

Greater London area.   

  The decentralisation was not, however, evenly spread around London.  Due to 

cleaner air to the west in comparison to the east of London, and easier links to the 

Midlands and north of the country, there was a particular growth to the west and 

north-west of London.  This growth was particularly pronounced north of the Thames.  

It is in this area that a lot of new light industry located providing the new electrical 

consumer goods, cars and processed foods that society was beginning to demand. 

 

Page 51



 

 

Figure 1:  Location of Town Centres and Employment Areas in Spelthorne  

 

1  Staines Town Centre    7  
Ashford Road, Littleton Road & Spelthorne Lane, 

Ashford  

2  Ashford Town Centre    8  
London Road (east of Crooked Billet roundabout), 

Staines  

3  Shepperton Centre    9  
Bedfont Road, Long Lane, Stanwell (including 

Northumberland Close & Camgate Estate)  
4  Sunbury Cross Centre  10  BP Chertsey Road, Sunbury  

5  Windmill Road, Sunbury  11  Shepperton Studios, Shepperton  

6  Hanworth Road & Country Way, Sunbury      

                                                                          

     Many new large industrial estates and areas were developed in West London at 

places such as Park Royal, Willesden, Acton, Greenford, Wembley, Southall and 

Hayes as well as ribbon development along the main arterial routes such as the Great 

West Road, Bath Road, Great South West Road and Edgware Road.   

   In Spelthorne at this time, whilst there were already notable industries such as 

Staines Linoleum, new industrial areas and businesses were started.  This included 

BP who moved to Sunbury in 1917, Shepperton Studios which started in 1931 and the 

Poyle Trading Estate (now located in Slough) which started just after the First World 

War.   

Page 52



 

9 
 

  Due to the general expansion of manufacturing and other businesses, and aspirations 

for better living conditions, large areas of new housing were created.  At this time 

there was little strategic planning generally and the growth of manufacturing and 

housing for workers was not coordinated.  Large dormitory estates were created 

involving new patterns of commuting.  

  Whilst the advent of Green Belt policy around London from 1956 generally saw a halt 

to further unrestrained building across the countryside, growth in the previous few 

decades had already been substantial.    

  The types of housing inevitably matched the means of the growing population who 

were made up by a significant proportion of workers in the new industries.  For 

example, in Spelthorne and other areas of nearby West London there was a particular 

prevalence of semi-detached as against detached houses.  The nature of employment 

and housing of its workers created a particular socio-economic character.    

  Following the Second World War Heathrow Airport’s expansion brought further 

economic growth and diversification of business activity.  It has also provided 

significant amounts of unskilled and semi-skilled work.  

  The origins of this development of the wider West London area and its socio-

economic consequences go a long way to explain the differences between Spelthorne 

and the rest of Surrey.  

  This Local Economic Assessment uncovers a lot of characteristics of Spelthorne 

which have been formed by its economic and social history7. 

 

                                                
7
 The account given in paragraphs 2.9-2.18 has been drawn from the Greater London Development Plan 

1944 prepared under Professor Patrick Abercrombie – published by HMSO 1945.  

Page 53



 

 

Figure 2  Location of Spelthorne    

 
   

3. Transport 

3.1 Spelthorne is located to the south of Heathrow Airport and is adjacent to West 

London. The M3, M25 and A30 trunk road all pass through the borough, the M4 and 

M40 motorwaysare  within 10 minutes drive. Junctions 13 and 14 of the M25 lie on the 

periphery of the Borough whilst junction 1 of the M3 sits in the south east of 

Spelthorne at Sunbury. Given its location in relation to the strategic road network, 

Spelthorne has excellent road connections to London and Heathrow and Gatwick 

Airports. This connectivity also means that Spelthorne has good access to the wider 

South East and South West regions.  

3.2 Six rail stations are located within the borough to further enhance its connectivity. 

Staines is the fifth busiest passenger station in Surrey and London Waterloo is 32 

minutes travel time via Staines with services also running to Reading, Hounslow, 

Windsor and Weybridge. The Shepperton branch-line also provides services to 

London Waterloo via Kingston-upon-Thames  

Page 54



 

11 
 

Figure 3  Key Road and Rail Links in Spelthorne  

 
  

3.3 Spelthorne is well connected to the national motorway network but congestion is a 

problem both in parts of the Borough and the wider area, particularly into London.  

The M3 motorway passes through the southern section of the Borough and links 

London via the A316 with Southampton and beyond, with Junction 1 of the M3 at 

Sunbury Cross. 

3.4 The M25 motorway is an orbital route around London and passes through the 

northwest of the Borough, less than a mile from Staines Town Centre.  From the M25 

there is quick access to the M4 motorway (London to South Wales) and the M40 

motorway (London to the Midlands).  

3.5 The A30 passes through the northern part of the Borough with a bypass round 

Staines Town Centre, linking with the M25 at Junction 13.  The A30 provides a dual 

carriageway link into London. 

3.6 The A308 is a dual carriageway which links to the A30 just north of Staines and 

travels due east to Sunbury Cross.  It then continues as a single carriageway to 

Kingston. 

3.7 There are bridging points over the River Thames at Staines, Chertsey and Walton as 

well as the bridges for the M3 and M25. 

Page 55



 

 

3.8 The A3044 (Stanwell Moor Road) and B3003 (Clockhouse Lane) provide access from 

within the Borough respectively to the west and east sides of Heathrow Airport, which 

lies immediately the north.  There is also access to the airport from the M25 (Terminal 

5 spur at Junction 14b) and the A30 at Hatton Cross.  

Rail  

3.9 There are two rail lines serving Spelthorne. The Staines to Waterloo line provides 

access to London in 32 minutes on fast services. Ashford is also on the Staines to 

Waterloo line. From Staines trains continue to either Reading, Weybridge or Windsor. 

From Weybridge there are trains to Woking, Southampton, Portsmouth and Exeter. 

3.10 The Shepperton to Waterloo branch line is separate from Staines to Waterloo line. It 

also has stations at Upper Halliford, Sunbury and Kempton Park. The Shepperton line 

goes to Waterloo via Kingston.  

3.11 Staines is the fourth busiest station in Surrey. The total “entry” and “exit” figures for all 

Spelthorne stations for 2014/15, 2018/19 and 2019/20 are shown below. It shows that 

Staines and Ashford passenger use had grown slighltly between 2014/15 and 

2018/19 whilst the other four stations passenger use at decreased, All six stations 

decreased in 2019/20 compared to 2018/19 which will be the first sign of the impact of 

travel due to covid. Figures by station are not yet available for 2020/21 but for Great 

Britain passenger numbers were 77.7% down and represents the lowest level of 

annual passenger usage since before 1872. 

3.12 Staines station was the 221st and Ashford 588th busiest stations out of 2567 in 

2019/20 which puts them in the top quartile 

Figure 4  Usage of railways stations in Spelthorne  

Station  

Passenger usage per annum    

2014/15  2018/19 2019/20 
Most used 
staion rank 

Staines 2,881,160 2,867,034 2,678,088 221 

Ashford 1,043,988 1,076,006 986,432 588 

Sunbury  436,480 409,878 381,432 1049 

Shepperton 442,564 392,426 358,762 1086 

Upper Halliford 134,534 129,378 117,876 1657 

Kempton Park 71,498 52,822 45,670 2025 
Source: Office of Rail and Road  

3.13 In July 2016 the council voted to fully support a local campaign for Spelthorne to be 

absorbed into the Transport for London Zone 6 area and access to a Oyster card, 

which would provide cheaper and more accessible rail travel to and from London. 

There is support for this from residents and stakeholders both in and out of 

Spelthorne including Heathrow Airport, Shepperton Studios and Thorpe Park.  

Discussions on this are still ongoing. 

3.14 Spelthorne has excellent transport connectivity however has suffered with problems 

around congestion. Despite the high proportion of Spelthorne residents employed by 

Heathrow (pre covid), there is no current direct access by rail meaning travel to work 

patterns are mainly made by road. If Crossrail 2 goes ahead then this will also have 

negative implications for the borough as current plans will lead to a loss of rail 

services to London Waterloo and therefore the council will need to effectively lobby 

against this.  Currently Crossrail 2 has effectively been mothballed for the short to 

medium term due to the lack of funding available.  The scheme would likely be 

restarted in its current state depending on available funding 

Page 56



 

13 
 

 

Bus Routes  

3.15 Spelthorne has a relatively dense network of bus services and benefits from a number 

of services in London terminating at Staines and Sunbury. There are 32 bus routes 

that operate a sevvice in or that passes through Spelthorne including the Hospital 

Hopper that connects Ashford Hospital and St Peters Hospital  

3.16 Staines Town Centre has a bus station at the southern entrance to the Elmsleigh 

Centre. A number of bus services terminate in the town. Services go to London, 

Berkshire, the rest of Surrey and Heathrow.    

 

Heathrow Access  

3.17 Heathrow has direct links to it via spur roads from both the M4 and the M25 which are 

respectively on the north and west side of the airport. There are also links on the 

south and east side from the nearby A30 trunk road. Access to the airport from 

Spelthorne is via Stanwell Moor Road to the south-west corner of the airport from 

which access to all terminals, including the cargo terminal, can be gained.  

3.18 Existing rail links to Heathrow comprise the “overground” to London Paddington with 

dedicated Heathrow Express services. The Piccadilly line underground service also 

extends to all passenger terminals. 

3.19 However, direct access for residents who literally live a few hundred yards away from 

the perimeter fence remains difficult as it does for any residents living in Spelthorne.  

Discussions are on-going with government departments, Surrey County Council and 

others in respect of southern access to Heathrow.  There have been a number of 

options presented.  The Spelthorne solution is a lightrail option that would travel from 

Staines-upon-Thames town centre to Heathrow in 10 minutes. 

3.20 It is likely to be many years before work starts on the agreed solution, so this will not 

be elaborated on within this document, except to say that the Spelthorne preferred 

option will bring with it many economic advantages and other solutions including one 

that by-passes Spelthorne offer no economic reward.  

 

Travel to work 

3.21 The graph below shows details from the 2011 Census on the mode of travel 

Spelthorne residents use to get to work. Please note this is the latest available 

information. 

Page 57



 

 

Figure 70:  Method of travel to work by Spelthorne residents  

 

Travel to work patterns  

3.22 The ONS 2011 Travel to Work Areas shows Spelthorne focussed more towards South 

West London and the eastern area of the Thames Valley. Based on the analysis on 

travel to work areas and commuting data in the joint Spelthorne & Runnymede 

Strategic Housing Market Assessment it is clear that notable flows from Spelthorne to 

London, and especially Heathrow, can be identified. The greatest commuter flows to 

London Boroughs from Spelthorne are to Hounslow (13.5 %,) Hillingdon (10.2%) and 

Richmond-upon-Thames (5.1%) but with notable flows also to Elmbridge (4.3 %,) 

Runnymede (10.2 %,) Slough (3.4%) and Windsor & Maidenhead (1.7 %.)   

 

4 COVID-19:  Economic Impact on Spelthorne Jobs and 

Busineses 

Background 

4.1 From midnight on the 23 March 2020 the government required as many people to 

stay at home wherever possible and to only make essential journeys.  All non-

essential businesses and workplaces were required to close, in addition to the earlier 

closure of schools and the leisure and hospitality sectors.  Social distancing was 

introduced for everyone, and for the most vulnerable to the infection, a shielding 

programme was activated. These ‘lockdown’ measures were put in place until it was 

determined that the reproduction rate of the virus had fallen to a level to suppress the 

virus, save lives and protect the NHS. 

 

4.2 As the UK moved to a position allowing pubs and restaurants to open and the 2-metre 

social-distancing rule relaxed, the economy slowly and nervously returned in slow 

steps towards ‘normality’. However, the subsequent lockdown (December to March 

2021)  deepened the financial impact on many retailers with both winners and losers 

emerging. The majority of the rules were ended on July 19th 2021 but the impact is still 

effecting how people go about there daily lives. 

ONS Travel to Work Areas/Spelthorne Functional Economic Area Analysis 2016   

Work mainly at or from 
home 
Underground/metro/light 
rail/tram 
Train 

Bus, minibus or coach 

Taxi 

Motorcycle, scooter or 
moped 
Driving a car or van 

Passenger in a car or van 

Bicycle 

On foot 

Page 58



 

15 
 

Heathrow  
4.3 Heathrow Airport Limited is the major employment location for residents within the 

Borough, so a strategically important employer.  Heathrow, like the whole of UK 

aviation, has been severely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. Before the 

pandemic, Heathrow was part of an expanding and successful industry employing 

approximately 114,000 people in the local area (either directly employed by HAL, 

working ‘on airport’ or in the local supply chain). Nationally it was contributing more 

than £16 billion of economic output. A third runway was being planned to serve the 

increasing demand for the airport. The pandemic has put the future of the runway into 

question with the CEO (John Holland Kaye) telling the UK Transport Select 

Committee that “whether the third runway will be needed will have to see how things 

turn out over the next few years. If we are successful in rebuilding the UK economy, 

we will need that in 10 to 15 years’ time. If not, I think we are all in a different world.” 

4.4 Figure 3 & 4 show how COVID-19 has impacted on passenger numbers and cargo 

tonnage. Due to covid passenger numbers have drastically reduced from 80.9 million 

passengers in 2019 to 22.1 million passengers in 2020 which is a 72.7% drop in 

numbers, this includes fewer than 4 million passengers on North American routes – 

compared with nearly 19 million in 2019. Cargo volumes in 2020 were down 28%.  

Figure 5. Passenger numbers May 2019 to March 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fig

ure 

6:  Cargo 

numbers 

July 2019 

to March 

2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 59



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.5 In May 2020 the green, amber and red coding system was introduced which meant 

passenger numbers could start increasing and COVID- 19 permitting, the passenger 

numbers will reach pre COVID numbers in 2023. The amber coding has since been 

removed as this was causing confusion for the travel industry and the public. 

Travellers from the majority of Europe and Ameica no longer neeed to self isolate 

when arriving in the UK. 

Impact on Heathrow Jobs  

4.6 An Oxford Economics report commissioned by Heathrow in 2020 estimated that 

workplace-based employment reliant on Heathrow would fall by 21,300 jobs in 2020.  

It indicated job losses would be concentrated in the transportation & storage sector, 

particularly in air transport activity. 

4.7 The balance of evidence suggested that male, older, full-time, and less well-qualified 

workers were most vulnerable. However, the report indicated job losses would not be 

confined to those matching these characteristics alone: many jobs were expected to 

be lost in the distribution, hotels & catering sector which will affect younger workers, 

and those more likely to work part time.  Job losses in Spelthorne connected to 

Heathrow were expected to reach 1,500 in 2021 with a total of 16,000 job losses 

across Hillingdon, Hounslow, Spelthorne, Ealing, Slough and South Bucks.  By 

September 2021 these were the ‘hard to fill’ vacancies where the supply of jobs 

outsripped demand. 

4.8 Pre pandemic, 5,800 of our residents were in Heathrow related employment, 10.6% of 

the Spelthorne workforce, and the airport as a whole is not expected to return to 2019 

levels until 2023 at the earliest.  It is estimated that about 45% of our residents 

working at Heathrow live in Stanwell and Ashford, leaving them more exposed to the 

volatilities around the aviation industry.  Any recovery in this sector is likely to take 

years rather than months unless there is a significant change in circumstances, as the 

prevalence of new variants and high levels of deaths and infections nationally and 

globally will impact on passenger travel in particular. 

According to Heathrow in 2019 there were 76,000 on-airport jobs generated by 400  

companies.  Approximately 32,600 jobs, or 43%, are taken up by residents from the 

boroughs listed in the graph below. 

 

Figure 7: Heathrow jobs by location 

Page 60



 

17 
 

 

4.9 In general, local residents are understood to be mostly employed in lower value-
added occupations.   

Employment is highest in: - 

 

• passenger services (6,400 jobs); 
• catering & retail (5,200); 
• apron, ramp, drivers & baggage (4,300); and 

• security & access control (4,300)8   
 

4.10 Direct-off airport employment, along with ONS BRES data we estimate off-airport 

employment equates to 12,900 jobs in 2019, across the study area. More than two-

thirds of off-airport jobs are located in Hillingdon (9,100 jobs), followed by Hounslow 

(1,600), Ealing and Spelthorne (both 700).  Heathrow therefore supported an 

estimated 88,900 direct jobs9.  

4.11 Central government intervened by giving business the option to furlough staff as an 

alternative to redundancy or indeed closure of the business. This has been a costly 

but necessary process with 9.6m people furloughed (August 2020) and landed the 

government with an expected deficit of £300bn in the last financial year. But it has 

reduced the potential for high unemployment levels at this time. In the March 2021 

budget, the Chancellor announced that the furlough scheme will be extended to 30th 

September 2021. After this it was expected that we will see a sharp rise in 

unemployment as businesses will have to start paying wages of staff and many may 

choose to make redundancies instead. In the three months to March 2021, there were 

253,000 redundancies made in the United Kingdom, decreasing from the 308,000 

redundancies made in the three months to January 2021. In September 2021 the 

number of payroll employees showed another monthly increase, up 207,000 to a 

record 29.2 million in September 2021, returning to pre-coronavirus (COVID-19) 

pandemic (February 2020) levels.10  

4.12 The number of job vacancies in July to September 2021 within the UK was a record 

high of 1,102,000, an increase of 318,000 from its pre-pandemic (January to March 

2020) level.  This will no doubt be attributed to the UK leaving the E.U and workers 

returning to their home countries. 

 

                                                
8
 FN Oxford Economocs Sept 2020 

9
 FN Oxford Economocs Sept 2020 

10
 https://www.statista.com/statistics 

Page 61

https://www.statista.com/statistics


 

 

4.13 Should the borrowing continue because the economy does not bounce back, there is 

likely to be tax rises to help repay the debt, as already has been seen with the 

increase payments on national insurance by employer and employee to support 

healthcare.  People may have less money in their pocket to spend, and production of 

goods and services may well fall as a result. Lower tax collection rates and fewer jobs 

may well leave the country in a more precarious position moving forwards. 

 

4.14 This chart shows the total unemployment rates from February 2020, just before the 

pandemic to January 2021. Spelthorne unemployment rate has increased from 1.7% 

to 5.6%, Surrey from 1.2% to 4.0%, South East 2.1% to 5.1% and GB from 3.0% to 

6.2% 

 

4.15 Figure 8: Unemployment levels 

 

 

 

This table shows how the COVID-19 pandemic has affected the unemployment rate in 

the 13 Wards in Spelthorne from February 2020 to January 2021.  The number of 

unemployed has increased by 328% from 1,050 to 3,450. The worst affected wards by 

number of claimants are Stanwell North with an increase of 275 followed by Staines 

255, Ashford North & Stanwell South 245, Sunbury Common 240 and Ashford 

Common and Ashford Town both with 200 extra unemployed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 9: Unemployment by ward 

Page 62



 

19 
 

 

Source: Nomis 

5 The pandemic and its impact on different age groups 

5.1 Age 16 – 24: In January 2020 there were 155 young people claiming benefits. In 

March 2020 Covid lockdown restrictions were introduced which had a detrimemtel 

effect to the employment market. Claiments for this age group peaked in February 

2021 at 660 a 425.8% increase. This figure has started to decrease since February 

2021, the relaxing of lockdown restrictions, increased foreign travel and the end of the 

furlough scheme will affect this figure in the short and long term 

5.2 Apprentices were a key vehicle to obtain employment for the young people, but the 

pandemic has brought an end to many of those opportunities as businesses furlough 

staff or making redundancies. The increased level of unemployment for this age group 

in Spelthorne as of June 2021 was 8.8% compared to Surrey 6.1%, the South East 

6.4% and Great Britain 7.7% 

5.3 Figure 10 Claiment Count in Spelthorne 16-24 year olds 

 

Page 63



 

 

Figure 10 shows that  in January 2020 there were 155 (2.34%) young people 

unemployed and as the year progressed to January 2021 this number increased to 

635 (9.59%).This has started to reduce, dropping to 565 in June 2021. 

5.4 Apprentices were a key vehicle to obtain employment for the young people, but Covid 

has brought an end to many of those opportunities as businesses furlough staff or 

make redundancies. 

5.5 Figure 11 shows the percentage of unemployment for this age group in Spelthorne 

compared to Surrey, the Soust East and Great Britain. The unemployment percentage 

is reducing in all of theses areas with Spelthorne reducing the slowest, this will be due 

to how reliant Spelthorne is on employment at Heathrow Airport and businesses 

connected to this industry 

Figure11: Percentage comparison of unemployment for 16 to 24 year olds in 

Spelthorne with Surrey, the Soust East and Great Britain 

  Jan-20 Jan-21 Jun-21 

Spelthorne 2.3 9.6 8.8 

Surrey 1.5 6.1 4.7 

South East 2.9 7.8 6.4 

Great Britain 4.1 9.2 7.7 
Source: Nomis July 2021 

The over 50 population are often a cohort that attracts greater difficulties in obtaining 

employment once a job has been lost. This is despite the Equalities Act 2010 which 

expressly prohibits bias based upon age.  

5.6 In January 2020 there were 275 (1.5%) people in this age group who were claiming 

benefits to 960 (4.8%) by January 2021. Research has suggested that most people 

who may lose their jobs at Heathrow are likely to be from this age group and be low 

skilled. Low skill sets decrease the opportunity of future employment as there will be a 

smaller job pool to apply for, additionally these will nearly always be at the lower end 

of the pay scale in terms of financial renumeration.  In January 2020 there were 275 

over 50’ unemployed. In March 2020 Covid lockdown restrictions were introduced 

which had a detrememtel effect to the employment market. Unemployment for this 

age group peaked in February 2021 at 995 a 361.8% increase. This figure has started 

to decrease since February 2021, the relaxing of lockdown restrictions, increased 

foreign travel and the end of the furlough scheme will affect this figure in the short and 

long term. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 64



 

21 
 

5.7 Figure 12 Claiment Count in Spelthorne for over 50 year olds 

 
Source: Nomis July 2021 

 

5.8 Figure 13 Spelthorne’s claiments by age group June 2021  

 

Source: Nomis July 2021 

Although figure 13 shows that more than 50% of people unemployed are in the 25-49 

age group this represents a gap of 24 years, more concerning is the 23% with the 18-

24 age group that only have far less people to be counted in this calculation.  

 

23 % 

55 % 

22 % 

Aged 18-24 

Aged 25-49 

Aged 50-64 

Page 65



 

 

 

 

5.9 Figure 14 Claiment Count in Spelthorne for over 50 year olds compared to 

Surrey 

 

Source: Nomis July 2021 

5.10 Level of furloughing across Surrey Districts and Boroughs 

Figure 15 shows research carried out by Arup using data from the Wave 4 of the 

Office of National Statistics (ONS) Business Impact of Coronavirus Survey (20th April 

3rd May 2020) which included sector-by-sector breakdown of the proportion of the 

workforce that has been furloughed.  This does not include data from the businesses 

that have stopped trading.  This has then been multiplied by the % of jobs in each 

sector within each Borough to estimate the overall proportion of the workforce which 

has been furloughed.  It is worth noting that our near neighbours in Feltham have an 

estimated furlough rate of almost 38% with 23,500 residents.  The total for Hounslow 

is estimated at 42,500, these figures are important as they will also be competing for 

jobs that would be attractive to Spelthorne residents. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 66



 

23 
 

Figure 15:  Estimated Impact of number of persons on Furlough 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.11 The working population of the borough is 57,700 according to NOMIS and with 

predicted 27% furloughing means that 15,500 residents are not working and on a 

reduced income. 

5.12 As of April 14, 2021, approximately 11.5 million jobs, from 1.3 million different 

employers were furloughed in the United Kingdom as part of the government's job 

retention scheme. 

 

6 Population / Employment within Spelthorne 
 

6.1 According to the Office for National Statistics Population Estimates as of April 2019, 

the population of Spelthorne stood at an estimated 99,925 constituting a 1% rise from 

2016 when the LEA was last compiled.  Within Surrey, Spelthorne is the 6th largest of 

the 11 boroughs/districts which was also the case in 2016. 

 

6.2 Figure 16: Surrey populations by local authority area 

            

Page 67



 

 

6.3 Figure 17  Spelthorne Population Projections to 2043 

 

7 Source: Population projections - local authority 2019 

 

6.4 Figure 17 Shows the predicted population growth rate up to 2043, this rate is slower 

than previously predicted 

 

6.5 The ONS Population projections report shows there has been and will continue to be an 

overall ageing of the Spelthorne population and this trend looks set to continue into the 

2030s.Table 18 shows the this by age group. The stand out numbers are that the over 65 

age group will increase from 18.6% in 2018 to 24.2% in 2041 and the core working age, 16 

to 64 decreases from 61.7% to 58.3%. The increasing over 65 age group will impact on 

areas like health and social care. 

 

6.6 Table 18: Projected Population in Spelthorne by age 

  

Total 
Projected 

Population 
(Spelthorne)  0 - 

15 
16 - 
24 

25 - 
49 

50 - 
64 65+ 

2018 
99,334 19.7 8.7 33.4 19.6 18.6 

2021 100,052 19.9 8.5 32.6 20.2 18.9 

2031 100,824 18.1 10.0 30.1 20.0 21.8 

2041 101,394 17.4 9.0 29.6 19.7 24.2 
7 Source; Nomis/ONS Population projections - local authority 2019 

 

6.7 The above chart shows that a number of factors will need to be taken into 

consideration by local authorities, this includes the level of provision of social support 

and health.  Additionally, nearly 25% of the people spending money in the borough 

will have different needs and requirements, so businesses will need to adapt in order 

to best access this growing market whilst others shrink or remain almost static. 

 

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

20
31

20
32

20
33

20
34

20
35

20
36

20
37

20
38

20
39

20
40

20
41

20
42

20
43

All Ages 99, 99, 99, 100100100100100100100100100100100100100100100100101101101101101101101

98,000

98,500

99,000

99,500

100,000

100,500

101,000

101,500

102,000

All Ages 

Page 68



 

25 
 

Economically Active Population  

6.8 In economic terms, the proportion of the population who are economically active is 

important and will have a bearing on the extent to which businesses are able to recruit 

locally and the amount of disposable income. In comparison to the other adjoining 

authorities and Surrey, Spelthorne has the 5th highest proportion of economically 

active people.  Figure 19 shows the number of people economically active 

 

6.9 Figure 19 Percentage of economically active in employment 

 

Source ONS Subnational population projections for England:2018-base 

Figure 20 shows the total unemployment rates from February 2020, just before covid-

19 affected the country to January 2021.  

 
Spelthorne have moved from 1.7% to 5.6%, Surrey from 1.2% to 4.0%, 
South East 2.1% to 5.1% and GB from 3.0% to 6.2% 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Page 69



 

 

Figure 20  Unemployment Levels compared to boroughs in Surrey and near by 

 

Source: Nomis January 2021 

 
6.10 As of December 2020 there were 7000 residents of working age that did not want a 

job11. Inevitably some of those of working age will either be retired, looking after family, 

sick or disabled, students or inactive for other reasons. As a result the percentage in 

work will never get close to 100%. It should be noted that “does not want a job” is not 

necessarily an indication of “idleness.” For example a person may not want a job as 

they have to care for a family member.  

Ethnic Diversity  

6.11 Spelthorne has a greater degree of ethnic diversity than any other Surrey borough, in 

the 2011 Census 81% of the population described themselves as “White British.”  

although nearly 86% were born in the UK.  Figure 21 provides a breakdown of the 

ethnic groups that people identified themselves as belonging to.  By comparison, most 

other Surrey districts are less diverse but the other adjoining authorities are more 

diverse.  It should be noted that this data comes from the 2011 Census.  The 2014 

ONS Population Projections estimates that there will be a year on year net rise of 

1000 international migrants which may see these figures rise. This may not be 

realised now as the UK has now left the EU and have ‘taken control of the country’s 

borders.  

                                                
11

 Nomis December 2020 

Elmb
ridge

Epso
m

and
Ewell

Great
Britai

n

Guild
ford

Hillin
gdon

Houn
slow

Mole
Valle

y

Reiga
te

and
Banst
ead

Rich
mon

d
upon
Tham

es

Runn
ymed

e

Sloug
h

Sout
h

East

Spelt
horn

e

Surre
y

Surre
y

Heat
h

Tand
ridge

Wav
erley

Wind
sor
and

Maid
enhe

ad

Woki
ng

February 2020 1.2 1.2 3.0 1.0 2.4 3.7 1.1 1.3 1.7 1.2 3.0 2.1 1.2 1.1 1.5 1.0 1.4 1.3

January 2021 3.9 3.7 6.2 3.2 7.2 9.2 3.6 4.3 4.7 4.2 8.4 5.1 4.0 3.9 4.3 3.2 4.5 4.4

1.7

5.6

0.0
1.0
2.0
3.0
4.0
5.0
6.0
7.0
8.0
9.0

10.0

February 2020 January 2021

Page 70



 

27 
 

6.12 Figure 21  Ethnic groups in Spelthorne  

 
Source: City Populatiomn 

 

7 Business Sectors 

 
7.1 One of the most prevalent industries in Spelthorne is transportation, with double the 

number of businesses situated in the borough compared to the next highest density in 

Surrey boroughs, so cargo and logistics are an important employer. 

7.2 In the latest available figures provided by the National Online Manpower Information 

System (NOMIS) (2018), There are estimated to be 3,500 people working in the 

Transport & Storage sector in Spelthorne which is 9.2% of our working population 

compared to 4.5% in the South East and 4.9% nationally. Given that these 

businesses are often closely tied to the fortunes of Heathrow airport, it is likely that 

there will be a significant loss of jobs within this sector.  It is worth noting that in both 

Hillingdon and Hounslow, they have the largest number of businesses in this sector 

compared to the other boroughs in London and the whole of the south east.   

7.3 This provides for a very high level of supply where the demand is very weak.  It has 

also been reported that trading conditions have been extremely challenging and have 

seen other businesses squeezing margins by reducing prices in order to obtain some 

of the limited demand for this service. 

7.4 On 21st May 2020 one of the largest transport and logistics companies based in 

Spelthorne reported a loss of 85% of their ground handling business within a few 

weeks with only a few flights running and about 70% of the cargo.  Therefore, by 1st 

April 2020 they furloughed 1200 staff in the UK, of which 55% was in Spelthorne. 

They also consolidated their business from 7 warehouses to 3 at London Heathrow 

and closed a warehouse in London Gatwick. 

87.3 

7.6 

1.6 0.3 2.5 0.7 

White Asian Black Arab Mixed Other

Page 71



 

 

7.5 BP  

In 2020 the company announced around 2,000 redundancies in the UK with 15% or 

300 job losses taking place by the end of the year.  These are expected to mainly 

affect office jobs, so Sunbury could take a significant hit.  The number of employees 

that are resident in Spelthorne is not known, but the majority are expected to be the 

lower paid jobs such as cleaning and catering. 

 

7.6 Businesses in the borough 

There are 7673 businesses in Spelthorne, Table 12 shows the split by ward  

Figure 22: Businesses in the Borough by ward 

 

Source: Fame May 2021 

7.7 In May 2021 a survey was conducted with the businesses that were in receipt of 

Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG), we found that the construction services sector 

did not seem to be as severely hit during the pandemic. In fact, several of the 

businesses we spoke to have seen some growth due to the demand in the home 

improvement sector during lockdown 

7.8 Figure 23 shows the response from businesses regarding business confidence 

in the borough 

“On the basis that all Covid-19 restrictions will have been lifted, what is your level of 

confidence for your business succeeding over the next 12 months?” 

                                                                                                               Figure 23 

None said their business will close 

30% said their business would 

struggle  

15% said busines would stay the 

same 

30% said business would improve  

7% thought their business would grow 

 

 

Page 72



 

29 
 

 

 

This was a very small scale survey so is not a representative samle and as such 

there should not be too much read into it, nevertheless, it is interesting that out of 

the 15 respondents, note 1 thought there was a liklihood that their business would 

close. 

8.0 Retail Performance 

8.1 In a November 2016 study by PropertyWeek.com32 identified the top 100 retail 
locations in the UK that represent significant opportunities for investment with Staines-
uponThames coming in 20th position. In there 2020 report Staines-uponThames 
dropped out of the Top 100. This is partially due to a change of methodology due to 
COVID. The methodology still included headroom for future investment, residential 
catchment size, population growth, competition and catchment demographics and 
tourism potential.  

The new elements included the below factors: - 

 How mobile a location’s population is compared with pre-lockdown levels was the 

main driver in the rankings, with a higher weighting than all other variables. 

 The amount a location previously relied on the worker population or tourists was also 

taken into account 

 The propensity of each location’s population to shop online. This segments the 

population into groups based on life stage, affluence and attitudes.  

 Variables on retail mix – places with a strong independent often score strongly, 

reflecting the shift in consumer behaviour towards localism.  

 

In this area, Staines Town Centre has very few independemt retailers and this could 

be an area where the council could encourage and entice such retailers. 

Staines 

8.2 In terms of shops, leisure and hospitality, the town centre is home principally to the 

larger chains rather than independents.   That being said, a handful of closures in the 

Elmsleigh Shopping Centre both during and pre-pandemic (such as Thomas Cook, 

Ernest Jones, Topshop, Monsoon, Ponden Home) have created openings for 

emerging independent retailers such as Ximiso, MBitz  and  Blue Inc., with other 

lettings in the pipeline including Tesco Metro which opens in 2021.   Larger store 

closures in the town centre generally, such as Debenhams and Decathlon, may be 

regarded as opportunities to reimagine and reinvigorate those two ends of the town 

centre; whilst the relocation of Marks & Spencer from the High Street to its new 

premises in Two Rivers facilitated a state of the art fit-out to launch the new M&S 

Foodhall. 

8.3 During the past year, the pandemic era has seen some changes in trends:  It is clear 

that people still have an appetite for shopping as a pastime, and this has been borne 

out since the release of lockdown.   In Elmsleigh, although actual shopper numbers 

are down compared with 2019, basket-spend over the past month has been on a par 

with pre-pandemic levels overall, showing that whilst people may be going out less 

frequently, they are still keen to go out shopping.   In the High Street a notable trend is 

being seen towards increased pavement seating around our hospitality outlets: whilst 

Page 73



 

 

this clearly arises from the need for social distancing and more space, the positive 

side impact is that the pavement café trend creating a more vibrant shopping 

experience for the visitor.  

 

 

 

 

8.4 Table 24 shows the visitor numbers to the Elmsleigh Centre 

 Source: Elmsleigh Centre Weekly visitor numbers weeks 15 – 20 during 2021 

8.5 Market: The market traders have reported a slow return of trade. Many of them rely on 

the office workers for their trade, and until they return to working in the town the future 

of some of the traders is in the balance. The Farmers Market has decided it is no 

longer viable to operate in Staines as footfall has been too low to sustain the market 

with traders choosing to go to busier towns. 

 

Ashford 

 

8.6 With 2,650 registered businessesthis town, although smaller geographically than 

Staines-upon-Thames, has a much larger and diverse business community in terms 

of number and type of businesses. The high street is dominated by independent 

retailers although these are predominantly hair & beauty, takeaways, and estate 

agents, which gives the impression there is not a good mix. 

 

8.7 Businesses that have been lost include during COVID-19 have included charity 

shops, a kitchen showroom and a gym. On the flip side there have been a number of 

new shops opening including TUT Restaurant, Best Western Supermarket, Chai Café, 

Pizza Parlour, Ice Cream Parlour, Sushi 2 Me and refurbishment of Armstrong’s 

Hairdressers.  

 

8.8 It is too early to tell the full impact, however at the moment the business gains on the 

high street have outnumbered the losses. The Local Restriction Support Grants 

(LRSG) and Adiitional Restrictions Grants (ARG) have been a lifeline for these 

businesses, and many have reported that they would not have survived without the 

Page 74



 

31 
 

grant money. The speed of recovery of trade for the non-essential retailers will 

determine their ability to remain open as cashflow is now one of the biggest concerns. 

 

Sunbury  

8.9 With 1496 businesses in Sunbury this town is split between the busy Sunbury Cross 

Junction and lower Sunbury parade on the Avenue and Thames Street. Businesses 

are reporting similar situation as the other towns with a large impact on footfall. There 

have not as yet been too many losses of retail businesses and there has been a new 

bakery store open on Thames street with reports of strong trade despite their out of 

the way location.  

 

 

Shepperton 

8.10 With 1258 businesses in Shepperton & Laleham combined, Shepperton Town has a 

traditional High Street. Whilst we do not have footfall counters to provide year on year 

figures, the anecdotal evidence is that footfall was catastrophically affected during the 

lockdown periods. 

8.11 On a positive note, many businesses were able to take advantage of online trading, 

click & collect and home delivery services. Adversely, some (eg Blue, a female 

clothing store) were left in a situation whereby they had new stock that they were 

unable to sell and, although not perishable, that they would not be able to sell at a 

later date due to weather and then fashion movements. Currently Shepperton is 

performing well with the majority of businesses re-opening on schedule.   

8.12 A new bakery (Cavan Bakery) has recently opened and this will join JAMZ Café & 

Bakery which opened in 2020 during the pandemic. New commercial units are being 

fitted in the old HSC bank building, forming a new mixed development site 

 

9.0 Business Births & Deaths 

9.1 It is hypothesised that due to the increased rate of unemployment due to Covid a 

large number of people have decided to to start their own business. From January 1st 

to May 27th 2021 1461 businesses started (births) and 929 closed (deaths) resulting in 

a net overall increase of 532 businesses. In our four main towns from January 2020 

there have been 404 more business births than deaths compared to 63 more deaths 

than births in 2019. 

 

 

9.2 Table 25 Business Births 

 

Source: Fame May 2021 

9.3 Table 26: Business Deaths 

Page 75



 

 

 

Source: Fame May 2021 

9.4 Table 27 Business Births compared to Deaths 

 

Source: Fame May 2021 

9.5 The above chart provides a very positive message with a gain of 311 businesses in 

2020 and a further 93 new businesses to May 2021  

Figure 28  Number of business births 2016 - 2020 

 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Page 76



 

33 
 

9.6 This takes data from the time of the last economic assessment and over the period 

of the delivery of the economic strategy and shows a sustained period of business 

growth.  It also underpins the confidence in the borough to start a business with 

steady growth of new businesses in the borough rising from under 400 a year to 

almost 1,000 in the space of 4 years. 

9.7 Figure 29 Business ‘deaths” in Spelthorne 2016-20 

 

9.8 2017 was the start of the current economic strategy, and this chart gives a vivid 

picture in relation to the decrease of failed businesses in the borough.  This does 

not suggest that the strategy was responsible for this, but it is likely it played 

some part in this performance. 

 

 

 

9.9 Figure 30:  Business deaths in Spelthorne as a share of the Surrey total 

 

This shows the percentage of business deaths in Spelthorne compared to 

Surrey. The percentage has decreased from a high of 23.3% in 2017 to 8% 

during the height of the pandemic in 2020, and in 2021 to the end of April 7.9%.  

10. Business and Enterprise 

10.1 Spelthorne has a significant amount of business space and a wide range of other 

facilities providing significant levels of employment.  

10.2 The main business space categories are industry and warehousing, offices and retail.  

The amount of floorspace in Spelthorne in these categories amounts to a total of 

approximately 820,000 sqm across all sectors as at July 2019.   

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

18.1 

23.3 

13.2 

7.8 8 

0

5

10

15

20

25

1

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Page 77



 

 

10.3 Figure 31 Business floorspace by main use type 2015 – 2020 

 

Source:  VOA data July 2020. 

 

10.4 Figure 31 uses the latest Valuation Office Agency (VOA) Non-domestic rating: 

business floorspace statistics published on the www.gov.uk website.  These indicate a 

current total business floorspace of 810,000 sqm across all sectors 

10.5 Much of the business floorspace is located either within the existing town centres of 

Staines, Ashford, Sunbury and Shepperton or major industrial estates/employment 

areas, as shown in Figure 1. 

10.6 The annual surveys of available premises were not carried out in 2020 due to the 

restrictions of the Covid19 pandemic.  The figures up to 2019 are published here for 

information.  The availability of the data relating to premises which are being 

marketed does not allow a clear distinction to be made between industrial and 

warehouse premises.  For this reason, the available commercial premises are broken 

down into just two categories, offices (B1) and business premises (industry B2 and 

warehousing B8).  The annual survey does not record vacant premises which are not 

being marketed at the time of the survey. 

10.7 Figure 32: Available Commercial Floorspace in Spelthorne April 2010–April 2019 

 

Page 78



 

35 
 

10.8 The current state of the property market has brought forward more residential 

development on sites previously in commercial use.  Due to change of use regulations 

a number of offices in Spelthorne have been and continue to be convereted into 

residential units this is through ‘Permitted Development Rights’ which was brought in 

by the government to make most use of empty office space to create additional 

housing which is in short supply. This helps achive the governments new homes 

target of 603 homes per annum for Spelthorne.   

10.9 Table 33:  Completed floorspace developed by employment type 1 April 2019 – 31 

March 2020  

 
Gross floor 
space in m

2
 

Losses in floor 
space in m

2
 

Net gain in floor 
space in m

2
 

Offices (B1a) 102 4,693 -4,591 

Research & Development (B1b) 0 0 0 

Light Industry (B1c) 0 614 -614 

Industrial (B2) 272 0 272 

Warehousing/storage (B8) 0 0 0 

Mixed B1/B2/B8 0 0 0 

 Source:  In house monitoring (Tables A2/1 & A2/3) 

 N.B.  Losses refer to any loss of floorspace arising during the monitoring year and does not necessarily relate to 
the loss on a site where completed development is recorded during the year.              

10.10 Whilst Spelthorne has a large amount of business floorspace there is also a 

significant amount of space immediately adjoining the Borough at Heathrow Airport, 

Poyle/Colnbrook and the Causeway area of Staines in the Borough of Runnymede.  

Following a series of local government boundary changes in the 1990s the areas of 

Poyle/Colnbrook, part of the Causeway in Staines, the Cargo Terminal at Heathrow 

Airport, half of Terminal 4 and part of the site of what is now Terminal 5 were 

transferred respectively to Slough, Runnymede and Hillingdon.  The total business 

floorspace (excluding Terminal 4) amounted to 365,000m2 which is almost as much 

as all industrial/warehouse floorspace now in Spelthorne.  These ‘transferred’ areas 

nevertheless remain readily accessible to residents in the Borough 

10.11 Comparison of overall business floorspace with other local authority areas  

Despite Spelthorne being geographically smaller than the majority of authorities in 

Surrey it is the 4th largest for business space which was also the case in the last LEA 

report produced in 2016. 

10.12 Table 24 compares the total amount of business floorspace with all adjoining and 

other Surrey authorities in 2016 when the last LEA was published compared to March 

2020 which is the latest available information .  .   

 

Page 79



 

 

10.13 Table 34 Comparison of total business floorspace by hectare 

 
Source:  Valuation Office – March 2020 

  

10.14 However, the above comparison takes no account of the relative physical size of 

Spelthorne and therefore the density of business floorspace provision.  Of all the 

comparison authorities only Slough and Epsom & Ewell have a smaller geographical 

area than Spelthorne.  Figure 4 therefore makes a comparison of the amount of 

business floorspace per hectare for each authority.  In this comparison Spelthorne 

has more floorspace per hectare than any other Surrey authority and only Hillingdon, 

Hounslow and Slough have a greater density.   

10.15 The annual surveys of available premises were not carried out in 2020 due to the 

restrictions of the Covid19 pandemic.  The figure up to 2019 are published here for 

information.  The availability of the data relating to premises which are being 

marketed does not allow a clear distinction to be made between industrial and 

warehouse premises.  For this reason, the available commercial premises are broken 

down into just two categories, offices (B1) and business premises (industry B2 and 

warehousing B8).  The annual survey does not record vacant premises which are not 

being marketed at the time of the survey. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

2016 2020

Page 80



 

37 
 

10.16 Figure 35:  Available Commercial Floorspace (Square Metres) in Spelthorne 
April 2010–April 2019  

 

Source:  In house monitoring 

10.17 The current state of the property market has brought forward more residential 
development on sites previously in commercial use but which are no longer suitable 
for that purpose.  No commercial sites within the designated employment areas have 
been lost to non-employment uses apart from vacant offices being converted to 
residential under the “prior approval” regime.  Three schemes completed this year, 
providing 113 dwellings, have resulted in the loss of some 5,506m2 of B1a office 
floorspace, whilst further schemes involving the creation of 307 dwellings and the loss 
of just over 15,881m2 of office floorspace have either commenced or are outstanding.  
During 2020 and 2021 the loss of office space across the borough has been keenly 
felt, particularly in Staines-upon-Thames. 

10.18 The number of commercial completions has increased slightly this year but the market 
remains slow at present.  The redevelopment of the former Majestic House site, now 
known as Charter Square, is still under construction with a larger proportion of the 
scheme providing residential units in place of office floorspace as originally proposed.  
There remain a number of other major schemes in the pipeline, including the Centrica 
site in London Road Staines.  Details of all outstanding commercial permissions are 
set out in Appendix 2 Table A2/4. 

10.19 There has been very little new retail development activity throughout the Borough.  
The redevelopment of retail units on the north side of the High Street (at 90-106), just 
west of the Iron Bridge with a 155 bed hotel and over 1,435m2 of ground floor retail 
units was completed in July 2018.  There has been no further progress on the two 
alternative schemes to provide additional retail floorspace for the Phase 3 extension 
to the Elmsleigh Centre in Staines which had previously been agreed in principle.  
Neither scheme looks likely to proceed in its current form.   

 

 

 

 

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

 35,000

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

m2 

Business Premises Offices

Page 81



 

 

10.20 Table 36:  Completed retail, office & leisure development - 1 April 2019 - 31 
March 2020  

 
Total gross floorspace (m

2
) 

Whole Borough 

Total gross floor space (m
2
)  

In town centres only 

Retail (A1) 0 0 

Financial & Professional Services 
(A2) 

0 0 

Restaurants, Cafes etc 
(A3/A4/A5) 

304 177 

Office (B1a) 102 0 

Leisure (D2) 0 0 

Source:  In house monitoring  

10.21 Table 37:  Vacancy rates in larger shopping centres 

 

Source:  In house monitoring (Appendix 3 Table A3/2)  

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

% 

Staines Ashford Shepperton Sunbury Cross

Page 82



 

39 
 

 

10.22 Figure 38  Types of businesses situated within Spelthorne  

Number of Busineses by Category   

Specialised construction activities 776 

Computer programming, consultancy and related services 562 

Retail trade 543 

Real estate activities 510 

Wholedsale trade 483 

Other personal service activities 458 

 Activities of head offices; management consultancy activities 445 

Transport 368 

Office administrative, office support and other business support 319 

Food and beverage service activities 312 

 Construction of buildings 298 

Human health activities 266 

Maunfacturing 228 

Other professional, scientific and technical activies 209 

Education 205 

Services to buildings and landscape activities 159 

 Warehousing and support activities for transportation 156 

Architectural and engineering activities; technical testing and analysis 142 

Motion picture, video, programming & broadcasting 133 

 Sports activities and amusement and recreation activities 132 

Financial and insurance services  118 

Legal and accounting activities 118 

Employment activities 90 

Creative, arts and entertainment activities 80 

Information service activities 73 

Social work activities without accommodation 61 

Water collection & treatment, sewage & waste 56 

Civil engineering 53 

 Postal and courier activities 52 

Activities of membership organisations 52 

Residential care activities 50 

Security and investigation activities 49 

 Advertising and market research 48 

 Repair and installation of machinery and eq 45 

Travel agency, tour operator and other reservations 45 

Accommodation 44 

Publishing activities 36 

Telecommunications 35 

Activities auxiliary to financial services and insurance activities 35 

 Rental and leasing activities 33 

Page 83



 

 

Extraction of crude petroleum and natural gas 32 

Repair of computers and personal and household goods 30 

Mining support service activities 27 

Public administration and defence; compulsory social security 23 

 Scientific research and development 12 

Activities of households as employers of domestic personnel 12 

 Veterinary activities 10 

Libraries, archives, museums and other cultural activities 9 

 Forestry and logging 7 

Electricity, gas, steam and air conditioning supply 7 

Undifferentiated goods and services-producing activities of private households for own use 5 

Other mining and quarrying 2 

Crop and animal production, hunting and related service activities 3 

Fishing and aquaculture 1 

Mining of metal ores 1 

Gambling and betting activities 1 
Source Fame May 2021 

 

10.23 Figure 39 Shows the split of floorspace from 2015/16 to 2019/20 

 

Source: AMR 2021 

10.24 Types and size of businesses in Spelthorne  

The previous paragraphs have considered the amount of ‘business rated’ 

floorspace in the Borough on the basis of four broad activity categories.  Figure 

9 categories the VAT/PAYE registered businesses in Spelthorne using the 

national Standard Industrial Classification (UK SIC 2007) by Broad Industry 

Group.   

        

 

 

 

 

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

Industrial sector Office sector Retail sector Other sector

m2 

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

Page 84



 

41 
 

 

10.25 Figure 40 VAT and/or PAYE based enterprises in Surrey 

 

ONS March 2020 

The above chart shows the number of VAT and/or PAYE based enterprises by 

broad industry group. Spelthorne have 4,720 businesses which is 8th in Surrey, 

the highest being Elmbridge on 8,925 and the lowest Epsom and Ewell with 3,800 

10.26 Figure 41: Percentage of VAT and/or PAYE based enterprises by broad 

industry group in Spelthorne 

 

ONS March 2020 

10.27 The greatest number of Spelthorne’s 4720 businesses are in the ‘professional, 

scientific & technical’, ‘information & communication’, ‘transport & storage’ and 

‘construction’ groups which was the same in the 2016 LEA. These represent 

56.8% of all businesses, an increase from 52% in 2016 and from 46% in 2013.   

10.28 Whilst the highest proportion of businesses in Spelthorne are ‘professional, 

scientific & technical’ at 16.5%, this is a much lower percentage than in most 

comparison authorities.  Only Slough has a lower proportion of people employed 

Surre
y

Elmb
ridge

Wave
rley

Guild
ford

Reiga
te

and
Banst
ead

Mole
Valle

y

Woki
ng

Tandr
idge

Spelt
horn

e

Surre
y

Heat
h

Runn
ymed

e

Epso
m

and
Ewell

Series1 65,29 8,925 8,320 7,425 7,260 5,430 5,335 5,065 4,620 4,390 3,800

Series2 4720

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

Page 85



 

 

in this industry group.  The next lowest percentage in the rest of Surrey for this 

group is Runnymede at 19.2%.  

10.29 When comparing Spelthorne with all adjoining/Surrey authorities the proportion in  

10.30 ‘transport and storage’ is significantly greater than the majority 9.9%; with only 

Slough having a higher figure on 11.8% the next closest is Hounslow 6.4%. The 

highest in the rest of Surrey is Runnymede at 4.3%.  This high figure for 

Spelthorne reflects the proximity of Heathrow Airport and in particular the 

location of the airport’s cargo centre on its south side.  There is a particular 

concentration of air freight businesses in the Borough, the significance of any 

large industry sector in one area is that if that sector suffers a decline in demand, 

the impact on jobs is also at risk; this has been demonstrated with the impact of 

COVID-19 on the industry.  

10.31 Relative to most other authorities, Spelthorne has a high proportion of 

‘construction’ businesses and more in percentage terms 15.7% than any adjoining 

or Surrey authority apart from Tanbridge 17.7%, Hillingdon 16.7% and Reigate and 

Banstead 16.3% 

10.32 Figures 42 shows the number of businesses by employment size in Spelthorne 

and figure 43 shows the number of businesses employing less than 10 people 

in the other boroughs in Surrey. They show that a significant proportion of 

Spelthorne’s businesses are small with 81.7% having between 1 and 4 

employees and 92.7% employing less than 20 people.  The 0 to 4 employees 

percentage has grown from 76% at the 2016 LEA.  In Surrey Spelthorne has 

the second highest amount of businesses employing less than 10 people. This 

does give the borough the opportunity to support and nuture the small 

businesses and as they expand to keep them in the borough which will help 

with investment and employment opportunities.   

10.33 Figure 42 Number of businesses in Spelthorne by employment size 

 
Source: Fame April 2021 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

5,000

 0 to 4  5 to 9 10 to 19 20 to 49 50 to 99 100 to 249 More than
250

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
B

u
si

n
es

se
s 

 

Employment Size 

Page 86



 

43 
 

10.34 Figure 43: Percentage of businesses in Surrey employing under 10 people 

 

Source: Fame April 2021 

Figure 34 Published information on the age of businesses shows a broad spread 

between those that have operated for less than two years (23.3%) to those that 

have operated for more than 10 years (40.3%). Figure XX shows that four of our 

neighboring boroughs have a higher percentage of businesses trading less than 

two years but in Surrey we have the second highest percentage. This shows that 

businesses still have confidence to open new businesses in Spelthorne. The 

benefits of our Business Incubator will further strengthen this situation. 

  

  

10.35 Figure 44  Businesses in Spelthorne by Age of Business  

 

Source: Fame April 2021 

 

 

 

 

62

64

66

68

70

72

74

76

78

80

82

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Less than 2 years Less than 5 years Less than 10 years Over 10 years

Page 87



 

 

 

10.36 Figure 45: Businesses in Surrey and local boroughs trading less than 2 years 

 

Source: Fame April 2021 

11 Support for Small Businesses 

11.1 The latest EM3 Commercial Property Study that was produced in 2016 

highlighted the need for more specialised, flexible workspaces including 

business Incubators, Accelerator spaces and Co-working spaces (IACs) in 

order for small businesses to grow, particularly those in the 4 key sectors.   

11.2 IACs are business premises where serviced space is available for small 

businesses.  These generally provide space with limited up-front costs and a 

range of facilities that are particularly suitable for start-up businesses.  Most of 

this space is in office buildings. When the EM3 Commercial Property Study 

was produced there was no incubator space in Spelthorne, this key point has 

been addressed with the opening of Spelthornes Business Hub based in 

Sunbury upon Thames in June 2021, flexi office space is also available in the 

borough at various locations including The Powerhouse in Ashford and 

Centurian House in Staines. 

11.3 The government allocated local authorities funding to give to businesses to 

help them through the pandemic, the amount allocated to September 2021 

exceeded £50m.  One of the grants was called Additional Restrictions Grant 

(ARG) where each area could provide business support on a discretionary 

basis.  This allowed local authorities to utilise this funding (£2.9m for 

Spelthorne) to help businesses in a way which local conditions were best 

served.  Spelthorne took a view that there would be 2 key phases. 

Phase 1. this was based upon ‘Business Survival’ and as such opened 4 

windows of opportunity over 12 months for businesses to apply for funding up 

to the value of £10 which would then be transferred directly into the business 

bank account for that business to use in the best way they felt fit, which would 

also include their own personal situation including debts and liabilities. 

Phase 2 was ‘Recovery’, this targeted the funds to help businesses in 3 

distinct ways. 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Page 88



 

45 
 

1. To improve performance and productivity:  Businesses were invited to 

apply for funding that would be used to purchase replacement or new 

equipment to make their business more competitive and grow.  This 

allowed applications up to £20,000 with only 10% of this coming from the 

business. 

2. People Skills:  Improve the skills and abilities of our business owners by the 
provision of professional business support and training. Professional business 
advisors available free of charge to businesses who needed support connected 
with running the business i.e. finance, HR, growth etcetera. 

3. Make best use of Technology:  To make the best use of digital technology so that 
they can compete on-line / utilising social media to access new customers far and 
wide in addition to the traditional bricks and mortar.  This comprised of the 
provision of free training on how to make best use of social media over 5 weeks; 
also free support to get businesses on-line via a dedicated website. 

 
11.4 The Spelthorne Business Forum is also an integral source of support for 

businesses, it is delivered by the council on behalf of businesses and has grown 

to nearly 1,000 members over 16 years.  This not only offer a wide range of 

networking opportunities for new businesses but also to a free business 

directory and presentations. 

 

11.5 The Council also organises an annual Spelthorne Business Awards event to 

celebrate some of the fabulous businesses within the borough and collaborates 

with the MP Kwasi Kwarteng in the annual Business Plan Competition for 

budding new businesses. 

 

 

12 Business Turnover 

12.1 Figure 36 provides information on the number of businesses by turnover.  

Some 38% of businesses in Spelthorne have a turnover less than £100,000 per 

annum compared to 42.9% in 2017. Businesses with turnover between 

£100,000 and £249,999 has grown from 31.8% to 36.1% which indicates that 

businesses in the borough are growing their turnover 

12.2 Figure 46  Businesses in Spelthorne by Turnover  (£ thousand)– 2017 & 2020 

Page 89



 

 

 

 

Source:  ONS 2020 

 

 

12.3 Figure 47 Businesses under £100,000 in Surrey boroughs 

 

Source:  ONS 2020 

13 Economic Performance 

13.1 There are various measures which can be used to create a more general 

‘picture’ of how a particular area is performing economically, one of which is the 

UK Competitiveness Index.  This uses 10 sets of data to produce an overall 

31.0

32.0

33.0

34.0

35.0

36.0

37.0

38.0

39.0

40.0

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

0-49 50-99 100-249 250-499 500-999 1000-4999 5000+

% 

2017 2020

Page 90



 

47 
 

score of relative economic competitiveness for local authorities.  The data sets 

are:  

• Economic activity rates  

• Business start-ups per 1,000 population 

• Business per 1,000 population  

• Education  

• Percentage of knowledge based businesses  

• Gross Valued Added (GVA)  

• Productivity output per Hour Worked 

• Employment rates  

• Gross weekly pay  

• Unemployment rates  

13.2 Table 48 shows the national rank for 2011, 2020 and 2021 for Spelthorne, the 

adjoining authorities and the rest of Surrey.  The lower the number the more 

competitive an area is.  Surrey boroughs have 6 in the top 10 (out of 379) and 10 

in the top 23.  Spelthorne is the lowest in Surrey ranked 51st, this still puts 

Spelthorne in the top 20% of boroughs in the UK and a steady improvement from 

68th in 2011.  

13.3 Figure 48 Relative Competitiveness16   

Authority  

2011 2020 2021 

UK rank 
of 379  

UK rank 
of 379  

UK rank 
of 379  

Spelthorne  68 60 51 

Adjoining 
authorities:  

     

Elmbridge  2 7 3 

Runnymede  42 32 17 

Slough  102 127 127 

Windsor & 
Maidenhead  

19 8 18 

Hillingdon  144 166 115 

Hounslow  163 124 86 

Richmond  40 12 7 

Surrey authorities:     

Epsom & Ewell  21 4 4 

Guildford  16 17 10 

Mole Valley  1 9 11 

Reigate & 
Banstead  

12 25 19 

Surrey Heath  30 18 9 

Tandridge  8 22 23 

Waverley 4 4 2 

Woking 7 6 5 

                                              
16   UK Competitiveness Index 2013 & 2019  

 

13.4 It should be noted that the top performing region of the UK is London with the 

South East in second place.  Therefore, whilst Spelthorne’s scores are not as 

good as in adjoining areas it is still in the top quartile nationally.  Detailed 

Page 91



 

 

examination of the factors making up the ‘Index’ show that the single issue 

contributing most to the Borough’s lower ranking is educational attainment and 

specifically the relatively low percentage of residents with a degree or 

equivalent.  Compared to the 18 adjoining / boroughs in Surrey Spelthorne 

ranked 15th out of 1612.  NVQ4 or higher improved in the borough in 2020 with 

50% now achieving this. 

13.5 Computer Software and Hardware companies. The National Planning Policy 

Framework (NPPF) requires local authorities to “plan positively for the location, 

promotion and expansion of clusters or networks of knowledge driven, creative 

or high tech industries.” It is therefore relevant to explore whether any particular 

clusters or networks of knowledge driven, creative or high tech industries are 

present in the borough.  

13.6 Figures 49 Shows the number and percentage of Computer Software and 

Hardware companies in Spelthorne compared to the rest of Surrey. Surrey has 

5592 Computer Software and Hardware companies with 462 (8.2%) being in 

Spelthorne. One aim of the recently opened Business Hub is to attract tech 

companies to the borough.  High tech, digital, immersive companies often offer 

good salaries and the potential to grow and expand as the world edges towards 

the adoption of artificial intelligence (AI) to advance science, technology, 

pharmasuticals, vaccines and much more. 

 

13.7 Figure 49 Number of Computer Software and Hardware companies in 

Surrey 

 

Source: Fame July 2021 

 

 

13.8 Figure 50 Percentage of Computer Software and Hardware companies in 

Surrey 

                                                
12

 Nomis 

Page 92



 

49 
 

 
Source: Fame July 2021 

 

13.9 Spelthorne is part of the Enterprise M3 Local Enterprise Partnership stretching from 

Spelthorne in the north through to Winchester in the south. The M3 area is home to 

the primary Sci / Tech corridor in the UK, a status gained through its combination of 

industrial strengths, cutting edge research and high performing universities.13  

13.10 The study identifies 4 key priority sectors: ICT & digital, professional and 

financial services, pharmaceuticals and aerospace and defence. The Upper M3 

area is deemed to be a key cluster in 3 of these: ICT & digital, professional and 

financial services and pharmaceuticals. 

Companies House SIC Code Analysis  

13.11 Figure 51 shows us the total number of company registrations across 

Spelthorne and Surrey from 2017 to 2020. The results show that Spelthorne is 

below the average per borough but the percentage gap is reducing from 75.9% 

in 2017 to 93.6% in 2020.  What it also shows is that Ashford is consistently 

incorporating significantly more new businesses than any other town in the 

borough. 

13.12 Figure 51:  Total companies incorporated in Spelthorne and Surrey 

2017-2020 

Surrey   Spelthorne Surrey   Spelthorne Surrey  Spelthorne Surrey  Spelthorne 

2020 2020 2019 2019 2018 2018 2017 2017 

11358  8106  6272  5720  

1032 

average 

per 

borough 

966 736 

average 

per 

borough 

670 570 

average 

per 

borough 

528 520 

average 

per 

borough 

395 

                                                
13

 Enterprise M3 Commercial Property Study 2016  

Elmbrid
ge

Guidfor
d

Waverle
y

Woking

Reigate
and

Banstea
d

Spelthor
ne

Surrey
Heath

Runnym
eade

Mole
Valley

Tandrid
ge

Epsom
and

Ewell

Series2 14.9 12.3 11.6 10.1 10 7.7 6.9 6.2 6 5.9

Series3 8.2

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

Page 93



 

 

 Ashford -  368 
Shepperton & 

Laleham  - 163 
Staines - 197 
Stanwell - 84 
Halliford & 

Sunbury - 156 

 

 Ashford – 256 

Shepperton & 

Laleham  - 111 
Staines - 134 
Stanwel - 58 

Halliford & 

Sunbury - 113 

 

 Ashford -194 

Shepperton & 

Laleham  - 80 
Staines - 117 
Stanwell - 34 
Halliford & 

Sunbury - 103 

 

 Ashford -  158 
Shepperton & 

Laleham  - 

Staines - 82 
Stanwell - 22  

Halliford & 

Sunbury - 62 

 

Source: Fame May 2021 

This shows that Ashford Town has the largest percentage of businesses in Spelthorne 

with 17.3% followed bt Staines,14.3%. Riverside & Laleham has the fewest with 3.6% 

13.13 Figure 52: Businesses by ward 

Area Number of Businesses  % of Businesses  
Spelthorne 7673 100 

Ashford Common 497 6.5 

Ashford East 402 5.2 

Ashford North & Stanwell South 422 5.5 

Ashford Town 1329 17.3 

Halliford & Sunbury West 363 4.7 

Laleham & Shepperton Green 522 6.8 

Riverside & Laleham 278 3.6 

Shepperton Town 736 9.6 

Staines 1101 14.3 

Staines South 396 5.1 

Stanwell North 494 6.4 

Sunbury Common 499 6.5 

Sunbury East 634 8.2 
 

13.14 Table 53 shows the number of transportation and storage companies 

incorporated in Spelthorne from 2018 to May 29th 2021 and the percentage 

compared to Surrey. The categories included are land transport and transport 

via pipelines, water and air transport, warehousing and support activities for 

transportation and postal and courier activities. These categories have been 

consistently stronger than Surrey as a whole This is largely due to the proximity 

of Heathrow Airport and the motorway network. 

13.15 Figure 53:  Transportation and storage companies incorporated  

New Businesses Spelthorne  Surrey Spelthorne  Surrey Spelthorne  Surrey Spelthorne  Surrey 

TRANSPORTATION AND STORAGE 

Jan 1st to      
May 29th 

2021 

Jan 1st to          
May 29th 

2021 2020 2020 2019 2019 2018 2018 

Total 35 130 79 362 45 207 41 153 

 % of Surrey 26.9   21.9   21.7   26.8   
Source; Fame May 2021 

 13.16Figure 54 shows the type and number of businesses in Spelthorne. There are 56 

different categories in operation in the borough. The top 10 catregories accounts for 

59.2% of all businesses in the borough and the top 15 categories 74.2% 

Page 94



 

51 
 

This also shows the percentage of businesses by category compared to Surrey. The 

top two categories by % are Transport (land, air & sea) at 19.6% and Warehousing 

and support activities for transportation 17.9% which reflects Spelthornes location to 

Heathrow airport and also our reliance to this sector as well as the access to various 

motorways. 

13.17 Figure 54:  Type and number of businesses in Spelthorne and Surrey

Top 20 Spelthorne Businesses by Category compared to Surrey       

Category Spelthorne Surrey % 

Specialised construction activities 776 7203 10.8 

Computer programming, consultancy and related services 562 7436 7.6 

Retail trade 543 6947 7.8 

Real estate activities 510 8865 5.8 

Other personal service activities 458 5381 8.5 

Activities of head offices; management consultancy activities 445 9584 4.6 

Transport (land, air & sea) 368 1884 19.6 

Office administrative, office support and other business support 317 6008 5.3 

Food and beverage service activities 312 3970 7.9 

Construction of buildings 298 4813 6.2 

Wholesale trade 271 3261 8.3 

Human health activities 266 4377 6.1 

Manfacturing 210 3139 6.7 

Other professional, scientific and technical activities 209 4055 5.2 

Education 205 3046 6.7 

Services to buildings and landscape activities 159 2170 7.3 

Warehousing and support activities for transportation 156 870 17.9 

Architectural and engineering activities; technical testing and analysis 142 2382 6.0 

Motion picture, video, programming & broadcasting 133 1727 7.7 

Sports activities and amusement and recreation activities 132 2184 6.0 
 

14 Staines-upon-Thames BID 

14.1 Visit Staines Business Improvement District14 (BID)  was established in 2017. 

BIDs are business-led initiatives, taking advantage of government legislation 

that gives local business the power to raise their own funds through a levy on 

their business rates. This can then be spent on their business priorities as 

identified in the BID Proposal to improve their trading environment on things 

such as events, town rangers, Christmas lights etc. A BID term is 5 years after 

which a new ballot must take place. The new ballot will be in 2022, due to the 

effect covid has has on the high street and the closure of a number of main 

contributors to the BID including Debenhams there is no guarantee that the 

new ballot will be successful.  In October 2021 the BID Board decided to 

slightly increase the area the BID covers, thereby taking in additional 

heriditaments. 

                                                
14

 www.visitstaines.co.uk 

 

Page 95

http://www.visitstaines.co.uk/


 

 

14.2 The business rates levy has been set at 0.75% for businesses in serviced 

accommodation (Two Rivers, Elmsleigh Shopping Centre’s) and 1.5% for all 

other businesses. The BID area can been seen in the map below. The BID area 

is for the most part retail only, however there are some non-retail businesses 

also included. 

14.3 Figure 55:  Staines-upon-Thames Business Improvement District  

 

14.4 The Staines-upon-Thames BID aim was  provide £1.6 million of new investment for 

over 300 business over the 5 year term. It has currently  invested £1.1m based on 

the BID levy collected so far 

14.5 .The BID board identified the following as their key objectives:  

• Create a strong collective business voice in the town  

• Increase footfall and boost trade  

• Improve the economic opportunities and the trading environment for businesses 

in Staines-upon-Thames  

• Create a new brand and identity for Staines-upon-Thames  

• Market Staines-upon-Thames to a local, regional and national audience through 

high profile marketing campaigns, multi-channel media advertising, year round 

events, festivals and markets  

• Capitalise on the heritage and location of Staines-upon-Thames  

• Increase awareness of businesses and town centre events by marketing to 

residents and employees  

• Supply businesses with useful data on town centre performance e.g. footfall, car 

park and dwell time figures  

• Make the town more welcoming, attractive and safer  

Source: Spelthorne Borough Council   

Page 96



 

53 
 

All of the objectives have been addressed with further activities to attract people 
to the town to continue.  

 

15 Skills and Qualifications 

15.1 The latest Spelthorne Business Survey has once again shown evidence that some 

businesses have experienced a shortfall in the necessary qualifications and 

experience when seeking to recruit.   

 

15.2 Figure 56 shows that there has been continued significant improvement since the last 

economic assessment in 2016 when only 37.8% of our residents had obtained 

NVQ4+ compared to 47.7% average across Surrey.  The latest data available in 2020 

now shows that instead of being significantly behind the Surrey average, Spelthorne 

now has a slightly higher than Surrey average with NVQ4+, with residents at 54% 

compared to Surrey’s 53.4%.   

15.3 Figure 56  Qualifications of Spelthorne Residents compared to the Surrey 

average 16 to 64 years old – 2016 and 2020  

 

Nomis to December 2020 

% with NVQ4+
- aged 16-64

% with NVQ3+
- aged 16-64

% with NVQ2+
- aged 16-64

% with NVQ1+
- aged 16-64

% with other
qualifications
(NVQ) - aged

16-64

% with no
qualifications
(NVQ) - aged

16-64

Spelthorne 37.8 58.8 74.0 85.0 10.1 4.9

Spelthorne 54.0 63.3 80.8 90.9 3.9 5.2

Surrey 47.7 64.7 80.3 89.2 6.6 4.2

Surrey 53.4 67.4 82.0 90.6 5.0 4.4

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

100.0

Chart Title 

Spelthorne Spelthorne Surrey Surrey

Page 97



 

 

15.4 Figure 57  Comparison of 16-64 year olds with no qualifications  

 

Nomis to December 2020 

15.5 Improvements have been made in all areas with the exception of those residents 

without any qualifications where it has risen slightly from 4.9% to 5.2%.  This puts 

Spelthorne as the local authority area with the second most residents without 

qualifications in Surrey, but well below the Great Britain average as can be seen by 

Figure 57 

15.6 Figure 58 shows the percentage of primary and secondary schools deemed “good or 

“outstanding” in Spelthorne in relation to Surrey and England.  The results show 

improvement on the level of performance from the 2016 LEA, with Spelthorne schools 

continuing to fair better than the level for England. (Please note that not all schools had 

available data on the ofstead or Gov UK sites) 

 

15.7 Figure 58  Percentage of Spelthorne Schools deemed good or outstanding  

 

 

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

80

85

90

95

100

105

Spelthorne Surrey England

Primary Secondary

Page 98



 

55 
 

Source: Ofsted/Gov.UK 

15.8 The above data in Figure 58 is likely to be a key reason why qualifications are 

improving within Spelthorne as the quality of the eduction provided, particularly at 

secondary level as measured by Ofsted is exceptional compared to Surrey and G.B. 

 

16. Quality of Life - Health and Wellbeing 

16.1 The county of Surrey is one of the least deprived in the country and its population 

generally enjoys good health and wellbeing.  In Spelthorne, many of the Borough’s 

residents also enjoy good health compared with other areas, but there are small 

pockets of deprivation in specific wards.  Significant problems also persist in the 

population which can lead to ill health, particularly obesity, smoking and physical 

inactivity, which are important causes of early death and ill health.  

16.2 In April 2016 the council adopted its Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The following 

tables give a snapshot of Spelthorne in comparison with the rest of the South East 

and England. 

16.3 Table 59  Data Summary for England, South East and Spelthorne  

  England  South East Spelthorne  

Total number of carers (2011 

census, please note that this is the 

latest information available)  

5,430,016 

(10.2%)  
108,433 (9.6)  9,844  

(10.3%)  

Admission episodes for alcohol 

related conditions per 100,000 

(2018/19)
1
  

664 

525*            
(this figure might 

be 10% higher due 

to recoring issues) 

665 

Smoking Prevalence (2019)
 1
  7.8%  12.2%  13.9%  

Excess winter deaths (2018-

19)
 1  15.1%  14.3%  22.1%  

Excess weight in adults - the 

percentage of adults classified as 

overweight or obese (2018-19)
 1
  

62.3%  60.9%  56.8%  

Obese children (year 6 2019/20)
 1
  21.0% 16.4%  18.0% 

Homelessness acceptances – per 

thousand households (2017-18)
 1
  

0.8 0.7 0.1 

Percentage of physically active 

adults – those achieving 150 

minutes of at least moderate 

intensity activity per week (2018-

19)
 1
  

67.2%  70.2%  62.2%  

Source: Public Health Profiles 2020 (Public Health England) 

 

 

 

  

Page 99



 

 

16.4 Table 60  Surrey and Spelthorne Comparison Table  

  Surrey  Spelthorne  Comments  

Life expectancy15  84 years for women   

80.5 years for men  

  

  

84.2 years women  

80.9 years men  

  

  

The life expectancy 

varies greatly from 

the most deprived 

areas compared to 

the least deprived  

Bed and  
Breakfast / 
Temporary 
accommodation 

 

Numbers not available   76 Households in B&B 

and   

  

32 Households in 
temporary 
accommodation  
arranged by local 

authority  

  

Numbers as of 28th 

July 2021 

 

16.5 Figure 61: Levels of Personal Wellbeing Spelthorne 

         Spelthorne came out as the “happiest place to live in Surrey”  

         The ONS broke down the average ratings of four factors, the score is out of 10. Life 

satisfaction scored 7.9, the feeling that the things done in life are worthwhile 8.3, 

happiness 7.9 and anxiety 3.0. The latest data covers the period between April 2019 

and March 2020, which does include the run-up to the first lockdown period. 

         Using these measures, Spelthorne came out on top across the county.  

16.6 Figure 62:  Levels of personal wellbeing in Spelthorne 

 

 Source ONS March 2020 

         

                                                
15

 Public Health Profiles 2017-19 (Public Health England)  

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Life satisfaction Worthwhile Happiness Anxiety

Spelthorne  

Page 100



 

57 
 

Figure 62 shows the personal wellbeing levels across Surrey and the adjoining 

authorities. Spelthorne outperforms the Surrey average in all four factors which 

indicates that although the borough has higher levels of unemployment than the rest 

of Surrey, people are happy with their personal well-being which suggests Spelthorne 

is a great place to live. 

16.7 Figure 63  Comparison of Personal Wellbeing across Surrey  

 
             Source: ONS March 2020 

 

16.8 The UK Prosperity Index16published in August 2021 shows Spelthorne moving from 

75th place in 2011 to 63rd in 2020 then 56th place in 2021 compared to 379 other local 

authority areas in the UK.  This suggests that Spelthorne is continuing to improve as a 

destination to live, work and run a business.  Under the various measures, Spelthorne 

performs worst under ‘natural environment’ at 360th place and best under ‘living 

conditions’ where we are placed in 13th position. 

16.9 An important factor in attracting people and businesses to live and set up their 

business is the offer available in relation to health, entertainment and facilities. The 

table below shows that Spelthorne currently falls behind for indoor sports facilities in 

Surrey, for squash courts, indoor bowls rinks and indoor tennis courts and are worst in 

Surrey for sports hall courts and 9th for swimming pool lanes. Spelthorne has the most 

gym stations in Surrey (1,036) this is an increase of 37% (756) since 2016 compared 

to the rest of Surrey that saw an increase of 1% (121). A new leisure centre at Knowle 

Greeen has been approved and will make available modern state of the art facilities 

when completed in the next 2 or 3 years.  

16.10 This indicates that the public and private sector could explore opportunities to bridge 

the gap, and if seen as financially viable enhance the current offer.  Staines town has 

little more than a cinema as entertainment to attract people to its night time economy 

and would for instance benefit hugely by an indoor bowls rink.  

                                                
16

 https://li.com/reports/uk-prosperity-index-2021/  

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Life satisfaction Worthwhile Happiness Anxiety

Page 101

https://li.com/reports/uk-prosperity-index-2021/


 

 

16.11 Table 64  Indoor sports and leisure facilities 

 

Table 64 shows the figures across Surrey for outdoor sports provision. Spelthorne 

lags behind Surrey with no athletics tracks and the lowest number of golf courses and  

10th for tennis courts. The lack of these facilities further hampers the boroughs ability 

to be competitive compared to other destinations and may lose out on inward 

investment.  The fact that Spelthorne is a small borough and much of the above can 

be located within a few miles of the Spelthorne boundary does mitigate the overall 

threat. 

 

16.12 Table 65  Outdoor sports and leisure facilities  

 

Page 102



 

59 
 

Housing Affordability  

16.13 The relative cost of housing can have a bearing on the extent to which those on lower 

incomes can afford to live in an area. In turn this can have an impact on local labour 

supply.  Housing is an important factor within economics, particularly inward 

investment opportunities.  If salaries are not sufficient to purchase or rent a property, 

then this may cause significant problems recruiting talent and a business owner may 

select somewhere more affordable. 

16.14 Figure 66 illustrates that housing costs are high in Spelthorne.  In December 2020 the 

median value of a semi-detached house was £525,000, an increase of 16.6% since 

the 2016 assessment.  

16.15 In terms of the rented sector again costs are high.  As of March 2021 the median rent 

for a home in Spelthorne was £1,049 pcm17.   

16.16 Figure 66  Median annual house prices in Spelthorne by type of dwelling 

(£000’s) 

  

 

    

Source: home.co.uk  

16.17 In comparison with most adjoining authorities and Surrey, house prices in Spelthorne 

are lower.  Only Slough’s semi detached house prices are lower than Spelthorne’s.  In 

absolute terms the cost of property in relation to incomes means that without 

substantial additional financial assistance first time Spelthorne buyers on average 

incomes have no realistic chance of purchasing a property.  

16.18 The cost of housing across the UK has become one of the defining issues for the 

Government. The housing crisis in London is particularly acute, however this does 

provide investment opportunities for adjoining boroughs such as Spelthorne, with 

                                                
17

 Home.co.uk 

Page 103



 

 

businesses looking for cheaper areas nearby to London to base themselves and their 

staff.  

16.19 In 2019 a study compiled by comparison website TotallyMoney.com ranked the top 

London commuter towns to buy a home. Each location was scored out of 40 based on 

4 available metrics:   

16.20 House price, commuting time, season ticket prices and life satisfaction.  

16.21 Table 67 shows that Staines-upon-Thames ranked 18th which was the second best 

location in Surrey only beaten by Walton on Thames that was 17th. The only other 

Surrey town in the top 25 was Epsom at 22nd. The only borough that is near to 

Spelthorne and not in Surrey that came in the top 25 was Slough at 21st.
 

16.22 Table 67:  Top 25 London Commuter towns   

Page 104



 

61 
 

 

Page 105



 

 

 

Source: www.totallymoney.com/commuter-hotspots   

17. Deprivation 

17.1 Since the 1970s the Government has calculated local measures of deprivation in  

England.  The latest release of data was in 2019.  This is used to create an Index of 

Multiple Deprivation as a composite overall measure of deprivation.  It is of note that 

some data sources on education and business are either the same or similar to some 

measures used in the Index of Competitiveness which is considered earlier in this 

report.  

17.2 The Index of Multiple Deprivation uses 39 separate indictors organised across seven 

key groupings of data:  

• Income  

• Employment  

• Health and disability 

• Education skills and training  

• Barriers to housing and services  

• Crime  

• Living environment  

17.3 From this data an overall “score” is derived and each local authority area is ranked 

according to its degree of deprivation.  This provides a broad indication of relative 

deprivation.  However, within each authority area there will be variations with deprived 

localities in generally well off areas and vice versa.    

17.4 The index covers 326 local authorities in England.  Within the Index a rank of 1 is the 

most deprived and 326 the least deprived. Spelthorne was 233rd  in the 2019 index, 

placing it in the second least deprived quartile.  

17.5 The table below sets out the rank of Spelthorne and authorities in Surrey and close 

byin rank order and grouped according to which quartile they lie nationally. 1st quartile 

being the best and 4th the worst 

 

Page 106

http://www.totallymoney.com/commuter-hotspots
http://www.totallymoney.com/commuter-hotspots
http://www.totallymoney.com/commuter-hotspots
http://www.totallymoney.com/commuter-hotspots
http://www.totallymoney.com/commuter-hotspots


 

63 
 

17.6 Table 68  Index of Multiple Deprivation 2019 

Local Authority  Rank  

1st Quartile  

Waverley  313 

Elmbridge  310 

Surrey Heath  309 

Windsor and Maidenhead 304 

Epsom and Ewell  299 

Richmond upon Thames 297 

Guildford  296 

Mole Valley  294 

Woking  283 

Reigate and Banstead  276 

Tandridge  258 

Runnymede  256 

2nd Quartile  

Spelthorne  201 

3rd  Quartile   

Hillingdon  151 

Hounslow  95 

4th Quartile  

Slough  73 

Source: DCLG- Index of Multiple Deprivation 2019 

Incomes  

17.7 Figure 69 shows the average earnings in pounds for employees living in the area who 

are on adults rates of pay and whose pay was not affected by absence. Figures for 

earnings come from the Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings (ASHE). The ASHE is 

based on a 1 per cent sample of employees. 

17.8 The average salary in Surrey for a resident in a borough ranges from  £30.3k in Mole 

Valley to  £41.2k in Guildford. Spelthorne was 9th lowest in Surrey on £34.7k but was 

above the average for the South East (£32.5k) and Great Britain (30.5k). The average 

salary for Surrey was £36.8k 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 107



 

 

17.9 Figure 69:  Weekly full time pay across Surrey and the adjoining boroughs and 

districts for 2020 compared to 2016 

 

 
 

Source:Nomis December 2020 

    

17.10 The table below shows that there are more people who live in the borough and work 

(50,484) than there are people currently working in the borough (41,367). Therefore 

Spelthorne is a significant net exporter of labour, with more people commuting out of 

the borough. 

17.11 This is linked by the number of jobs available within the borough.  With a score of 

0.82 this means that there are only 82 jobs available for every 100 residents aged 

between 16 and 64.  Spelthorne has a disproportionate amount of people employed at 

Heathrow outside the borough, so this is not a serious concern.  Surrey on the other 

hand has a  significant number of jobs available across the county for its residents. 

17.12 Figure 70:  Job density 

 

Spelthorne Surrey Great Britain South East

Jobs density 0.82 0.96 0.87 0.90

0.75

0.80

0.85

0.90

0.95

1.00

Jobs density 

Page 108



 

65 
 

18 Superfast Broadband 

18.1 Superfast Broadband is classed as download speeds of more than 24mbps (megabits 

per second.)  

18.2 Superfast Broadband is now a core requirement for most sectors, particularly the 

ICT/Digital sectors which are dependent on high upstream and downstream 

bandwidths for file sharing with clients and collaborators.   

18.3 Superfast Surrey is a partnership between Surrey County Council, BT and BDUK 

(Broadband delivery UK) with the aim of extending the fibre broadband network to 

homes and businesses across Surrey. (www.superfastsurrey.org.uk). However they 

have so far not “rolled out” into Spelthorne.  

18.4 Spelthorne has above average broadband speeds18with an average download speed 

of 81.1 Mbps compared th the southeast average of 71.6 Mbps and the UK at 72.9.  

18.5 The speed and reliability of broadband is becoming increasingly critical to the 

infrastructure of successful locations.  Businesses, including sole traders increasing 

rely upon access to good broadband speeds.  In 2019 meetings took place with 

Openreach and Spelthorne Council met to discuss fibre to the premises (FTTP) and 

as a result announced that (FTTP) would be fitted throughout Sunbury as a starting 

poine and then other locations in Spelthorne.  Most towns in the country have fibre 

running underneath the road or footpath, but only goeas as far as the cabinet.  The 

last and shortest journey from the cabinet to the house / office is by fibre and copper, 

this has a dramatic effect on speeds, slowing broadband considerably.  The full fibre 

option will give upload and download speeds of the same rate and initially will give up 

to 1GB speeds (1,000MB), this compares to current superfast speeds of around 

60MB 

 

19 Natural Environment 

 
19.1 This section briefly outlines the key environmental characteristics of the Borough 

which provide the physical setting for business activity in Spelthorne.  

19.2 Spelthorne lies within the first area of open countryside as one moves out from 

London.  It is separated from the urban area of London by designated Green Belt 

land.  Some 65% of the Borough is designated as Green Belt and this amount of open 

land enhances the attractiveness of the Borough.   

19.3 The Borough has a 12 mile frontage to the River Thames with the towpath for much of 

that length on the Spelthorne bank.  There are several historic Thames side villages 

such as Laleham, Shepperton, Lower Halliford and Lower Sunbury which are part of 8 

Conservation Areas in the Borough.  There are several extensive areas of public open 

space adjoining/close to the river, including Laleham Park, Dumsey Meadow and 

Sunbury Park.  The Thames itself is a source of tourism both from day trips as well as 

longer stays either on the water or close by.  Tourism is an aspect of the local 

economy the Council has been keen to expand.  

19.4 The following map shows the key environmental features.  

 

 

                                                
18

 https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/constituency-data-broadband-coverage-and-speeds/ 

Page 109

http://www.superfastsurrey.org.uk/
http://www.superfastsurrey.org.uk/
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/MxViCjqrni8037SRccBJ?domain=commonslibrary.parliament.uk


 

 

Figure 71:   Key environmental features in the Borough  

  

 

19.5 There are areas at flood risk from the Rivers Thames and Colne with some 7% of the 

Borough at risk . The larger part of this flood risk area is undeveloped open land and 

part of the natural floodplain.  

19.6 The Environment Agency has prepared a Lower Thames Flood Risk Management 

Strategy for managing future flood risk.  It involves an engineered component, which 

includes three diversion channels between Datchet and Shepperton and improvement 

to areas at Sunbury, Molesey and Teddington.  It is also proposed that the 

Desborough Cut near Shepperton will be widened to accept greater volumes of water.  

However, funding and the delivery timetable are still to be resolved.   

19.7 There are some significant areas of the Borough which are of national and 

international importance for nature conservation.  The most notable is the South West 

London Water Bodes Special Protection Area.   

19.8 There are a number of sites designated as  

Page 110



 

67 
 

19.9 Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and some 26 sites designated locally as 

Sites of Nature Conservation Importance (SNCI).  Some include extensive areas of 

former mineral workings, a few of which have received national awards for restoration.  

Town Centres  

19.10 Town centres are vital to the vitality of places. They are favoured by many 

professional service firms and investors because of their transport connections and 

amenities which in turn attract a wealthier, highly skilled and often younger 

demographic to the workforce. Local authorities have a key role to play in shaping 

their town centres.  

19.11 The Council has invested in its town centres and continues to do so to provide 

attractive shopping and business environments.  It is within these areas that by far the 

greatest proportion of the retail and related service uses in the Borough are located.  

They are important economic centres.  

19.12 In 2002 the Council completed two major enhancement schemes in Staines Town 

Centre.  Following the completion of the Two Rivers Shopping Centre the Council 

pedestrianised the High Street to provide a traffic-free zone and also completed a 

scheme to enhance a large park alongside the River Thames called Memorial 

Gardens.  The achievements were recognised by three national awards.    

19.13 The Council is looking to continue the enhancement of the town centre including 

opportunities to increase the contribution of the River Thames to the attractiveness of 

the town centre as a whole.  In 2021 a new jetty was built by Spelthorne Council 

which now allows river buses to set up regular journeys picking up and dropping off 

passengers in Staines-upon-Thames.  

19.14 The Council is currently working on an emerging Local Plan which contains the overall 

vision and framework for future development in the area, addressing needs and 

opportunities in relation to housing, the economy, community facilities and 

infrastructure - as well as providing a basis for conserving and enhancing the natural 

and historic environment, mitigating and adapting to climate change, and achieving 

well designed places. A survey was sent to residents and businesses in Spelthorne in 

2021 to get there views. The emerging Local Plan will set out how the local area will 

develop over at least the next 15 years and once adopted, will replace the 2009 

Development Plan. The next stage of the Spelthorne Local Plan is the consultation on 

the Publication Local Plan which is estimated to take place from February to March 

2022 

Secondary Town Centres  

19.15 Spelthorne Borough Council previously won funding from Surrey County Council to 

regenerate secondary shopping centres in the borough. The Town Centre 

Revitalisation Scheme allocated up to £3 million to the counties boroughs and 

districts, with individual proposals of up to £0.35 million requiring match funding of at 

least 50%. The 4 year investment programme was used to revitalise secondary 

shopping areas which are vital to local communities. The scheme invested in the 

following sites:  

• Clare Road, Stanwell  

• Edinburgh Drive, Staines-upon-Thames  

• Groveley Road, Sunbury-on-Thames  

• Woodlands Parade, Ashford  

   

Page 111



 

 

20 Business Organisations in Spelthorne and the Wider Area  

Spelthorne Business Forum  

20.1 In Spelthorne the lead organisation for business networking and support is the 

Spelthorne Business Forum (SBF).  It is a partnership whose aims are to provide help 

and support in the Borough.  

20.2 SBF’s main objectives are to:    

• Provide networking and information sharing opportunities for local businesses 

and business stakeholders  

• Develop Links with local schools to match skills with business needs  

• Identify and represent issues which affect local businesses across the borough 

of Spelthorne.  

• Act as a consultation forum and contribute to local business related decision 

making wherever possible  

• Seek to promote individual businesses via email, social media (Twitter, LinkedIn) 

where appropriate.  

• Seek to develop links with other business groups to maximise scope for 

business activity.  

20.3 The SBF is a non-statutory partnership. It supports the delivery of Spelthorne 

Council’s Economic Development Strategy.  SBF currently has a membership of over 

1000 businesses. 

20.4 In addition to the SBF there are a number of other local business organisations and 

those seeking to promote local business as part of their wider aim.  These include: 

Ashford Wide and Staines Village Residents and Traders Association. 

20.5 There are also other Surrey-wide organisations who are members or are connected 

with the SBF including Surrey Chambers of Commerce and the Federation of Small 

Businesses. 

  

Organisations covering a wider area  

20.6 The key business organisations in the wider area are Local Enterprise Partnerships 

(LEPs).  These were established by the Government from autumn 2010 to replace a 

previous structure of Regional Development Agencies.  LEPs are being increasingly 

used by the Government as the bodies to deliver local economic growth and to which 

to devolve funding to support this national priority.    

20.7 Spelthorne is a member of the M3 LEP (EM3) which covers West Surrey and a large 

part of Hampshire.  All of the London local authorities are in a single LEP.  East 

Surrey authorities are part of the Coast to Capital LEP (C2C).  The following map 

shows the geographic extent of LEPs in this part of the South East.  

    
20.8 Figure 72:  Local Enterprise Partnerships  

Page 112



 

69 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20.9 The Surrey County Council economic development team work in partnership between 

the County Council and 11 districts and the private sector to stimulate growth across 

the county.  SCC provides a unified voice for Surrey and champions the county with 

the Government.    

20.10 Surrey County Council seeks to position Surrey as a world class economy and 

shape  

‘a county where knowledge, creativity and innovation drive economic growth to bring 

prosperity and quality of life for all’.19  Specifically it seeks to foster ‘smart economic 

growth’ which brings innovation and jobs but also maintains the things that make 

Surrey an attractive location to live and work.  It also assists in representing Surrey in 

the EM3 and C2C LEPs – a role that is welcomed by both of these bodies.   

                                                
19

 www.surreycc.gov.uk   

Page 113

http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/


 

 

21 Sustainability 

 
21.1 Tackling climate change continues to be an important priority for the council. The 

climate change agreement in Paris in December 2015 agreed to limit global 
temperature increases to 1.5 degrees and the need to achieve zero net global carbon 
emissions by the second half of this century to achieve this commitment. As such the 
Council set out it's aspirations in its Sustainability Strategy and Energy and Water 
Policy in 2015 and also declared a Climate Emergency towards the end of 2020. 

21.2 Figure 73 shows the potential impact local authorities can make on emissions and the 
green agenda 

Figure 73 How local authorities control and influence emissions 

 

Source: Government Climate Change Committee Local Authorities and the Sixth Carbon Budget report December 2020 

21.3 In 2020 the council launched a dedicated member task group with the sole aim of 
tackling climate change as quickly as possible by developing a strategy and action 
plan. 

21.4 The Council has already progressed a large number of measures to address climate 
change including: 

 Council offices have reduced its energy usage by almost 40 per cent, this has 
included the introduction of low energy lighting and light sensors to reduce electricity 
consumption. 

 Solar PV installed on 2 of our Day Centres and the White House Depot 
 Single-use plastics policy 
 Stopped cutting large areas of grass to encouraging biodiversity through lowering 

grass cutting frequencies in certain open spaces 
 2 diesel vans replaced with electric vans in our fleet 
 2 electric pool cars and 2 electric pool bicycles introduced at Knowle Green for 

business travel use 
 53 electrical vehicle charging points across the Borough with plans to introduce at 

least another 30 in the immediate future 

Page 114



 

71 
 

 Sustainable housing strategy to include electrical vehicle charging points for new 
housing and commercial developments 

 Paperless Council meetings 
 Over 1000 trees planted in Spelthorne in the last year 
 £1.2million spent making homes in the Borough more energy efficient with funding 

awarded for new boilers and insulation upgrades. 
 Installation of solar panels for the housing development in the West Wing of the 

Council Offices and the boroughs community centres 
 Weekly collections of food waste, textiles and small electricals mean that these 

items are diverted from landfill.  
 Hosting of the annual School Eco-conference 
 Supporting action on Fuel Poverty – through the ECO scheme (funded externally) 

the latest figures show 3,062 energy efficiency measures have been installed in fuel 
poor households since the start of the scheme (the highest install rate in Surrey) 

 The borough has secured significant funding through the Green Homes Grant Local 
Authority Delivery Scheme to further support households improve the energy rating 
of their homes, this is in the process of being delivered. 

 Green/Sustainable category has been added to the Spelthorne Business Awards 
 Energy & Water Efficiency Policy 2015-2021 – Had a target to reduce emissions 

from energy use by 12.5% over the life of the policy. An 18% reduction was 
achieved 
 

21.5 Future Plans: 

 A Carbon Action Plan is currently being developed and will form the basis for much 
of the future work. Along with tying in with the Surrey County Council Climate 
Change Strategy (for which one of the ambitions is the Industry & Green Economy 
which will focus on the transition to clean growth through the decarbonisation of all 
major sectors and investment in the development of clean technologies and 
industries that create jobs and improve the quality of life of our residents) 

 LoCase – Surrey will be running a programme called LoCASE that aims to help 
businesses become more competitive and profitable while protecting the 
environment and encouraging low carbon solutions. The programme should be 
launched in 2021. 

 Continue to collaborate with the Greater South East Energy Hub (part of the EM3 
LEP) on funding opportunities and projects 

 Transitioning our fleet of vehicles to electric/alternative fuel.  

 Increasing local renewable energy generation and heat networks. 

 Increasing electric vehicle charging opportunities in the Borough, this will come from 
a mixture of Borough, County and private sector. 

 Enviromental Health with Surrey County Council have been looking at initiatives for 
encouraging taxis to go electric. 

 New Passivhaus Leisure Centre. 

 Further initiatives to improve the energy efficiency of private and social housing. 

 Develop a Sustainable/Environmental Procurement Policy 

 In 2023 a review of the refuse collection fleet will take place with the aim to convert 
to electric or hydrogen 50% of the fleet, depending on the best technology available 
and in 2027 to replace the remaining fleet of vehicles with electric or hydrogen. 

 
21.6 At Surrey level a Climate Change Strategy has been developed which provides a 

joint framework for collaborative action on climate change across Surrey’s local 
authorities and other partners to achieve the goal of net zero by 2050. A Climate 
Change Officers Group has been set up formed of Borough & District Officers and 
chaired by Surrey to help deliver the strategy objectives. 

 

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Version: 1, Last saved: 08/11/21 13:29 

Economic Development Committee  

 

Date of meeting: 16 November 2021 

 

1. Key issues 

1.1 Update on the Economic Development aspect of the Corporate Recovery 
Plan.  The reference letters below relate to those within the Corporate 
Recovery Plan. 

1.2 ‘ER1’ Continue to monitor, measure and understand how COVID has affected 
local businesses and adapt to respond to impacts.  A survey with businesses 
was conducted in May / June 2020 but the number of replies was very low 
and were unable to make much use of the data.  The low return rate was 
probably connected with the impact of COVID on businesses and people not 
going into work.  A new survey has been circulated within the Spelthorne 
business community targeting those businesses that have 10 or more 
employees.  The licence to access the survey has expired and the results are 
not known, however the licence should be re-instated prior to the 16th 
November Committee meeting and an update of the results will be provided 
by then.   

1.3 A dashboard has also been produced and circulated to councillors; this 
illustrated the level of unemployment in the borough as a whole, as well as 
within the 18-24 age group.  This dashboard has not been produced for the 
last 2 months due to the need to complete urgent pieces of work.  A new 
update will be produced in November prior to 16th.   

1.4 ‘ER2’ Provision/signposting of advice and support: The Spelthorne website 
has been continually updated throughout the COVID period; additionally, 
specific items of news, particularly regarding jobs have been circulated via our 
communications team through social media. 

Title Recovery Plan Update 

Purpose of the report To note 

Report Author Keith McGroary Economic Development Manager 

Ward(s) Affected All Wards 

Exempt No     

Exemption Reason N/A 

Corporate Priority Economic Development 

Recommendations 

 

Committee is asked to: 

Note the report 

Reason for 
Recommendation 

Not applicable 

Page 117

Agenda Item 10



 
 

1.5 ‘ER3’ Keep under review the Council’s discretionary grant policy: A separate 
report in relation to the Discretionary Grant also known as the ARG is 
provided for this meeting and covers this area. 

1.6 ‘ER4’ Implement our new Economic Development Recovery Plan:  This has 
been absorbed within the Corporate Recovery Plan. A separate Committee 
report provides an update with activities. 

1.7 ‘ER5’ Continue to work with the newly developed Jobs and Recovery Task 
Group:  This group has met on 3 separate occasions so far and consists of 
representatives from A2D, Job Centre Plus, Brooklands College and 
Runnymede Council.  The main purpose of the group is to share information 
and what projects or initiatives that each member of the group is working on 
so that there is the opportunity to enhance delivery through synergy whenever 
possible so that duplication of effort is reduced.  The group has not met since 
July when restrictions were lifted but agreed to meet at a future date if there 
was a need to do so. 

1.8 ‘ER6’ Support/promote employment and training initiatives:  Collaboration 
between BUPA, a local company called Click-26 and Brooklands College has 
resulted in an initiative that has enabled students to build an APP (I Choose 
Local) to obtain opportunities for work or jobs, this has just reached its testing 
stage and has equipped many of the students involved with new skills by 
developing the APP in-house.  Another project called ‘Bounce-back Street’ 
involving the same group and largely funded by BUPA involves a scheme 
whereby low paid, low-skilled and unemployed young people are provided 
training to help write CV’s, improve self-confidence (for interviews) and 
identify transferable skills.  A location has not yet been identified but is hoped 
to be launched in November. 

1.9 ‘ER7’ Work with partners to bid for funding for a Youth Hub in the borough A 
separate report has been submitted to cover this area.  A successful funding 
bid was made and work is well under way to get the Youth Hub up and 
running. 

1.10 ‘ER8’ Set up pop-up-shop where budding entrepreneurs can test the market 
in advance of setting up a business:  This has proved extremely difficult to 
implement, especially with the many requirements needed to comply with 
COVID regulations as well as the various lockdowns that have taken place. 

1.11 ‘ER9’ Prepare and promote our new business incubator:  The Spelthorne 
Business Hub was formally opened on 11th June by the Mayor.  On 30th July 
an event was held here at the instigation of Cllr Buddhi Weerasinghe for 
Sunbury businesses.  Those in attendance and main speakers were the 
Honourable Kwasi Kwarteng MP and Michael Coughlin Deputy Chief 
Executive of Surrey County Council.  Kwasi has indicated that he will also 
hold surgeries there in the future for businesses situated in Staines, 
Shepperton and Ashford.  The operator of the Hub is Co Tribe and the doors 
opened for customers on 2nd August.   

1.12 ‘ER10’ Promote opportunities in the Borough for the development of ‘green’ 
jobs:  This was going to be promoted through the Additional Restrictions 
Grant funding, but because of restrictions on how this grant can be spent, that 
source cannot be used to support this initiative.  However, once there is 
capacity within the team, this will be a key task and will be an area that will 
certainly be included within the new 2022-2027 Economic Strategy. 

Page 118



 
 

1.13 ‘ER11’ Promote ‘shop-local’ to our residents and visitors and promote ‘buy 
local’ procurement within SBC:  The team has worked closely with the 
procurement team and this has resulted in a change to procurement standing 
orders which now compels a manager with a budget to purchase items under 
£5k (whilst still achieving value for money) within Spelthorne or if not within 
Surrey; permission from a Head of Service is required to buy low-cost items / 
services elsewhere.  Discussions have been taking place with a number of 
providers that can supply an APP that would encourage people to buy local, 
but at present there has been no convincing evidence.  A project on this 
matter has been tried in Woking and has been met with resistance from both 
retailers and shoppers alike, so this is likely to lapse as a project. 

1.14 ‘ER12’ Provide additional frontline support for Ashford, Sunbury and 
Shepperton businesses:  A town Centre Manager has been appointed and is 
currently holding surgeries for businesses within each of the towns every 
week.  A separate report is submitted providing an update on progress. 

1.15 ‘ER13’ Work in collaboration with Staines-upon-Thames Business 
Improvement District (BID:  There are 2 representatives from SBC on the BID 
Board.  The BID is up for re-election in February 2022.  Through the levy, 
more than £300k additional money is generated annually in order to help 
improve the competitiveness and attraction of the town.  The decision on how 
that money is spent is through the commitments made within the BID 
Proposal Document and through the BID Board. A verbal update on the BID 
will be given to the Committee.  In 2020-21 £284,662.04 was collected from 
potential £303,977.00 (93.65%).  In 21/22 so far £234,170.22 from potential 
£284,162.51 (82.41%) has been collected leaving balance of £49,992.29. 

2. Options analysis and proposal 

2.1 Not applicable 

3. Financial implications 

3.1 Not applicable 

4. Other considerations 

4.1 There are none. 

5. Equality and Diversity 

5.1 The impact on equality and diversity issues is considered at every action 

6. Sustainability/Climate Change Implications 

6.1 Use of the ARG funding has potential to have a positive impact on the 
environment through new equipment which is greener and less polluting. 

7. Timetable for implementation 

7.1 In accordance with the Corporate Recovery Plan. 

 
Background papers:  
There are none. 
 
Appendices: 
There are none 
 

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Version: 141121, Last saved: 08/11/21 13:35 

Economic Development Committee  

 

16 November 2021 

 

1. Key issues 

1.1 This report provides a summary of the forecast outturn position for the 
financial year 2021-22 as at 30 September, for the Economic Development 
Committee which is showing a projected net overspend of £101k (June: 
£177k net overspend) a decrease of £76k.  

1.2 The forecast overspend of expenditure amounted to £1k (June: £77k -
overspend) and the forecast under-recovery of income was £100k (no 
change), with the major differences from Q1 being as follows: 

(a) A decrease of £76k in the Economic Development forecast for incubator 
costs to be offset by NNDR retention funds. 

1.3 The net overspend is further broken down to show the impact of COVID-19 on 
the Council forecast outturn position: 

(a) COVID-19 – a projected net under recovery of income of £100k (no 
change). 

The forecast outturn shows the projected impact of COVID-19 on Cost of 
Services is due to under recovery of fees, charges, and income with Staines 
Market. 

Title Draft Q2 Revenue Monitoring Report as at 30 September 2021 

Purpose of the report To note 

Report Author Paul Taylor Chief Accountant 

Ward(s) Affected All Wards 

Exempt No 

Corporate Priority Financial Sustainability 

Recommendations 

 

The Committee is asked to note the draft forecast outturn for 
2021/22 as at 30 September 2021 and the aggregate variances 
by cost centre reported in Appendix C5. 

 

(Please note that this is a draft report taken from the full report 
currently being prepared for the Corporate Policy & Resources 
Committee meeting on 29 November and has been collated 
before the completion of a full review process and may be subject 
to change, and if this is the case the Committee will be notified.) 

Reason for 
Recommendation 

Not applicable 

Page 121

Agenda Item 11



 
 

 

2. Significant Forecast Budget (under)/overspends at year end. 

2.1 Noting that we are only providing commentary for those budget lines with 
£20k or more variance, and where there has been a change in variance since 
Q1. There are therefore no comments for Economic Development Q2. 

 

3. Other considerations 

3.1 None. 

4. Equality and Diversity 

4.1 Not applicable. 

5. Sustainability/Climate Change Implications 

5.1 Not applicable. 

6. Timetable for implementation 

6.1 Not applicable 

 
Background papers: There are none. 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix C5 – Economic Development Revenue Report 30-09-21. 
  

Page 122



Appendix C5

Page 1 of 1

Appendix C5

Results to Forecast COVID-19 Non-COVID-19 Total Variance
 Comments 

30-Sep-21 Revised Outturn Variance Variance to Revised

£ £ £ £ £

Employees 215,000 212,240 0 (2,760) (2,760)

Other Expenditure 58,000 61,840 0 3,840 3,840 

Income 0 0 0 0 

Economic Development 273,000 274,080 0 1,080 1,080 

Employees 0 0 0 0 0 

Other Expenditure 113,300 128,400 0 15,100 15,100 

Income (250,000) (150,000) 100,000 0 100,000 No change from Qtr 1

Staines Market (136,700) (21,600) 100,000 15,100 115,100 

Employees 0 0 0 0 0 

Other Expenditure 0 (15,150) 0 (15,150) (15,150)

Income (302,000) (302,000) 0 0 0 

Staines Town Centre Management (302,000) (317,150) 0 (15,150) (15,150)

Total Employees 215,000 212,240 0 (2,760) (2,760)

Total Other Expenditure 171,300 175,090 0 3,790 3,790 

Total Income (552,000) (452,000) 100,000 0 100,000 

Net Total (165,700) (64,670) 100,000 1,030 101,030 

Budget

Economic Development

P
age 123



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Published on 1 November  

Spelthorne Borough Council  
Services Committees Forward Plan and Key Decisions 

 
This Forward Plan sets out the decisions which the Service Committees expect to take over the forthcoming months, and identifies those which are Key Decisions. 
 
A Key Decision is a decision to be taken by the Service Committee, which is either likely to result in significant expenditure or savings or to have significant effects on those 
living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in the Borough. 
 
Please direct any enquiries about this Plan to CommitteeServices@spelthorne.gov.uk.

P
age 125

A
genda Item

 13



 

Published on 1 November  

P
age 126



 

Published on 1 November  

Spelthorne Borough Council 
 

Service Committees Forward Plan and Key Decisions for 1 November 2021 to 28 February 2022 
 

Anticipated earliest (or 
next) date of decision 
and decision maker 

Matter for consideration Key or non-Key Decision Decision to be 
taken in Public or 
Private 

Lead Officer 

Economic Development 
Committee 25 01 2022 
 

Heathrow and Airspace 
Modernisation 
To receive a presentation on 
Heathrow's expansion plans 

Non-Key Decision 
 
 

Public Heather Morgan, Group Head - Regeneration 
and Growth 
 

Economic Development 
Committee 25 01 2022 
 

Additional Restrictions Grant 
Monitoring 

Non-Key Decision 
 
 

Public Keith McGroary, Economic Development 
Manager 

Economic Development 
Committee 25 01 2022 
 

Monitoring of Economic 
Development of Corporate 
Recovery Plan 

Non-Key Decision 
 
 

Public Keith McGroary, Economic Development 
Manager 

Economic Development 
Committee 25 01 2022 
 

Incubator - Implementation & 
Monitoring 

Non-Key Decision 
 
 

Public Keith McGroary, Economic Development 
Manager 

Economic Development 
Committee 25 01 2022 
 

Draft Economic Strategy 
2022 - 2027 

Non-Key Decision 
 
 

Public Tracey Carter, Senior Economic Development 
Officer 

Economic Development 
Committee 25 01 2022 
 

Sunbury Cross Rejuvenation Non-Key Decision 
 
 

Public Graham Boswell, Business Development 
Officer 

Economic Development 
Committee 22 03 2022 
 

Incubator - Monitoring Non-Key Decision 
 
 

Public Keith McGroary, Economic Development 
Manager 

Economic Development 
Committee 22 03 2022 
 

Economic Development 
Strategy (final) 

Non-Key Decision 
 
 

Public Tracey Carter, Senior Economic Development 
Officer 

P
age 127



 
 

1 November Key Decision Forward plan 
 

Date of decision and 
decision maker 

Matter for consideration Key or non-Key Decision Decision to be 
taken in Public or 
Private 

Lead Officer 

Economic Development 
Committee 22 03 2022 
 

Additional Restrictions Grant 
Monitoring 

Non-Key Decision 
 
 

Public Keith McGroary, Economic Development 
Manager 

Economic Development 
Committee 22 03 2022 
 

Monitoring of Economic 
Development of Corporate 
Recovery Plan 

Non-Key Decision 
 
 

Public Keith McGroary, Economic Development 
Manager 

Economic Development 
Committee 22 03 2022 
 

Revenue Monitoring Report 
Q3 (Oct-Dec 2021) 

Non-Key Decision 
 
 

Public Anna Russell, Deputy Chief Accountant 

Economic Development 
Committee 22 03 2022 
 

Capital Monitoring Report Q3 
(Oct-Dec 2021) 

Non-Key Decision 
 
 

Public Paul Taylor, Chief Accountant P
age 128


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Update from the Town Centre Manager
	Appendix A - Shepperton overview
	Appendix B - Sunbury overview
	Appendix C - Ashford overview

	8 Additional Restrictions Grant Monitoring
	ARG Potential Initiatives for Task Group October

	9 Local Economic Assessment
	Local_Economic_Assessment

	10 Monitoring of Economic Development of Corporate Recovery Plan
	11 Revenue Monitoring Q2 (July - Sept)
	Appendix C5 Economic Development Revenue Report

	13 Forward Plan

